
 Steve Sisolak 
 Governor 

Margaret Colucci, DC 
 President 
 Nicole Canada, DC 
 Vice President 

 James T. Overland Sr., DC 
 Secretary-Treasurer 

 

Morgan Rovetti, DC 
Member 

Xavier Martinez, DC 
Member 

Tracy DiFillippo, Esq. 
Consumer Member 

John Bertoldo, Esq. 
Consumer Member 

Julie Strandberg 
Executive Director 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIAN’S BOARD OF NEVADA 
4600 Kietzke Lane, M-245 │ Reno, Nevada 89502-5000 

Phone: (775) 688-1921 │ Fax: (775) 688-1920 
Website: http://chirobd.nv.gov │ Email: chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING/HEARING 

 
DATE:   Thursday, October 28, 2021  TIME:  8:30 a.m. 
 
LOCATION:   Video Conference Call via Zoom 

Instructions for attending conference call:  

Topic: Chiropractic Physicians' Board of Nevada 
Time: Oct 28, 2021 08:30 AM Pacific Time (US and Canada) 
 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83697712788?pwd=T0hiUzlsZUtuVmpaQlp0TXUyUnFwZz09 
 
Meeting ID: 836 9771 2788 
Passcode: 640138 
One tap mobile 
+12532158782,,83697712788#,,,,*640138# US (Tacoma) 
+13462487799,,83697712788#,,,,*640138# US (Houston) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
Meeting ID: 836 9771 2788 
Passcode: 640138 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kekABrD1It 

 
NOTE:  ALL AGENDA ITEMS ARE FOR DISCUSSION AND FOR POSSIBLE ACTION 
UNLESS OTHERWISE NOTED.   AGENDA ITEMS MAY BE TAKEN OUT OF ORDER, 

1 
 

http://chirobd.nv.gov/
mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83697712788?pwd=T0hiUzlsZUtuVmpaQlp0TXUyUnFwZz09


October 28, 2021 
 

COMBINED FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE BOARD, OR PULLED OR REMOVED 
FROM THE AGENDA AT ANY TIME. 

 
AGENDA 

 
Call to order - determine quorum present.  
 
Pledge of Allegiance – Dr. Rovetti 
Statement of Purpose – Dr. Colucci 
 
 
Agenda Item 1 Public Interest Comments - No action. 

A. Public Comment will be taken at the beginning and at the end of each Board 
meeting; 

B. Public Comment may also be taken at other such times as requested so long as the 
request that Public Comment be taken will not interrupt ongoing Board business; 

C. Depending on the number of individuals wishing to address the Board, a 
reasonable time limit may be set. The Board will not restrict comments based 
upon viewpoint; 

D. No action may be taken upon a matter raised during Public Comment until the 
matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an item upon which 
action may be taken. 

E. Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial 
proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual the Board may refuse 
to consider public comment as per NRS 233B.126.  

 
Agenda Item 2 Approval of agenda – For possible action. 
The Board reserves the right to address items in a different order or combine two or more items to 
accomplish business in the most efficient manner.  An item may be removed from the agenda or 
discussion may be delayed relating to an item at any time. 
 

Agenda Item 3 Approval of the July 15, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes. - For possible action. 
 
Agenda Item 4 Ratification of granting of DC licenses to applicants who passed the examination 
from July to September 2021 – For possible action  
 
Agenda Item 5 Ratification of granting of CA certificates to applicants who passed the 
examination on September 28, 2021 – For possible action  
 
Agenda Item 6   Legislative Matters – For possible action. 

A. Strategies 360 – Dan Musgrove 
 
Agenda Item 7  Discussion and possible action seeking approval of settlement agreements with 
the following chiropractic physicians relating to each’s failure to timely submit each’s self-
inspection forms - For possible action (action may be taken with a single motion). 
 

 
2 

 



October 28, 2021 
 

 
A. Milo Allen, DC   (21-12N)  
B. Daniel Lai, DC   (21-14S) 
C. Shawn Larkin, DC   (21-15S) 
D. Clinton Low, DC    (21-16N)   
E. Glenn Lunceford, DC  (21-17N) 
F. Kathleen Nash, DC   (21-18S) 
G. Robert Owens Jr., DC   (21-19S) 
H. Shannon Peacock, DC  (21-20N) 
I. Joshua Redd, DC    (21-21S) 
J. Michael Taylor, DC    (21-22S) 
K. Jordan Webber, DC   (21-23S) 

 
Agenda Item 8 Discussion and potential action regarding the Application for CA Certification of 
Nicole Ward - For possible action.  (Note: The Board may go into closed session pursuant to NRS 
241.030 to consider the character alleged misconduct, or professional competence of Ms. Ward) 
 
Agenda Item 9 - Discussion and potential action regarding the application for CA Certification 
from Sandra Milman, including but not limited to, review and potential approval of education 
attained by Ms. Milman - For possible action.  (Note: The Board may go into closed session 
pursuant to NRS 241.030 to consider the character alleged misconduct, or professional 
competence of Ms. Milman). – For possible action. 
 
Agenda Item 10 - Discussion and potential action regarding the reinstatement application for 
licensure of Todd Gardner DC (Note: The Board may go into closed session pursuant to NRS 
241.030 to consider the character alleged misconduct, or professional competence of Dr. 
Gardner). – For possible action. 
 
Agenda Item 11 Discussion and potential action regarding the citation in the Matter of Daniel 
Lai, DC - For possible action.  (Note: The Board may go into closed session pursuant to NRS 
241.030 to consider the character alleged misconduct, or professional competence of Dr. Lai) 
 
Agenda Item 12 Discussion and potential action regarding the application for licensure of Robert 
Anderson, DC - For possible action.  (Note: The Board may go into closed session pursuant to 
NRS 241.030 to consider the character alleged misconduct, or professional competence of Dr. 
Anderson) 
 
Agenda Item 13 Discussion and possible action regarding whether a single employee with the 
proper training and certification may perform the duties of a medical assistant, physical therapy 
tech, and a chiropractic assistant within the context of a multi-disciplinary practice. – For possible 
action. 
 
Agenda Item 14 PUBLIC HEARING for the adoption of a Regulation to Nevada Administrative 
Code Chapter 634 Known As LCB File No. 179-20 – For possible action. 
 
Agenda Item 15  Discussion and possible action regarding Board communication with licensees – 
For possible action. 

 
3 

 



October 28, 2021 
 

 
Agenda Item 16 Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary actions.  
Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board determines there is no 
violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing direction to pursue the matter further 
– For possible action:  

A. Complaint 19-12S (Rovetti)  
B. Complaint 20-01N (Rovetti) 
C. Complaint 20-03N (Rovetti) 
D. Complaint 21-01S (Nolle) 
E. Complaint 21-02S (Colucci)  
F. Complaint 21-03S (Canada)  
G. Complaint 21-07N (Colucci)  
H. Complaint 21-09S (Colucci)  
I. Complaint 21-10S (Colucci)  
J. Complaint 21-11N (Martinez)  
K. Complaint 21-12N (Canada)  
L. Complaint 21-14S (Canada)  
M. Complaint 21-15S (Canada)  
N. Complaint 21-16N (Canada)  
O. Complaint 21-17S (Canada)  
P. Complaint 21-18S (Canada)  
Q. Complaint 21-19S (Canada)  
R. Complaint 21-20N (Canada)  
S. Complaint 21-21S (Canada)  
T. Complaint 21-22S (Canada)  
U. Complaint 21-23S (Canada)  
V. Complaint 21-24S (Colucci)  
W. Complaint 21-25N (Colucci)  
X. Complaint 21-26N (Colucci)  
Y. Complaint 21-27S (Martinez)  
Z. Complaint 21-28S (Colucci) 
AA. Complaint 21-29N (Canada)  

 
Agenda Item 17 Board Counsel Report – No action 
 
Agenda Item 18 FCLB/NBCE Matters – No action.  

A. District I & IV Meeting Report 
B. Other FCLB/NBCE Matters 

 
Agenda Item 19 Consideration of potential additions, deletions, and/or amendments to NRS 634 
and NAC 634– For possible action. 
 
.Agenda Item 20 Committee Reports  

A. Continuing Education Committee (Dr. Martinez) – For possible action. 
B. Legislative Committee (Dr. Colucci) – For possible action. 
C. Preceptorship Committee (Dr. Rovetti) – For possible action. 

 
4 

 



October 28, 2021 
 

D. Test Committee (Dr. Canada) - For possible action. 
1.  Set CA exam schedule 

a. Discuss alternative exam scheduling 
b. February (in-person/on-line) 
c. June (on-line only) 
d. August/September (in-person/on-line) 

2. Supplementary Reference for CA’s 
a. Chiropractic Therapy Assistant – A Clinical Resource Guide 

 
Agenda Item 21 Executive Director Reports: 

A. Status of Pending Complaints – No action. 
B. Status of Current Disciplinary Actions – No action. 
C. Legal/Investigatory Costs – No action. 

 
Agenda Item 22 Financial Status Reports: 

A. Current cash position & projections – No action. 
B. Accounts Receivable Summary – No action. 
C. Accounts Payable Summary – No action. 
D. Employee Accrued Compensation – No action. 
E. Income/Expense Actual to Budget Comparison as of August 31, 2021 – No action. 
F. Budget to Actual at August 31, 2021 – No action. 

 
Agenda Item 23 Discussion and potential action regarding the Board’s 2022 meeting schedule - 
For possible action. 
 
Agenda Item 24 NCA Report – No action 
 
Agenda Item 25 NCC Report – No action 
 
Agenda Item 26 Public Interest Comments – No action. 
In accordance with NRS 241.020 Public Comment will be taken prior to the adjournment of the 
meeting. 
 
Agenda Item 27 Adjournment – For possible action. 
 

 
This agenda posted October 22, 2021 at the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada, 4600 
Kietzke Lane, Suite M245, Reno, Nevada 89502; State Library and Archives, 100 North Stewart 
St., Carson City, Nevada 89701; CPBN Website:  http://chirobd.nv.gov; and Notice.nv.gov.  
A request for copies of an agenda and/or a supporting document or documents may be obtained 
from: 

Julie Strandberg, Executive Director 
Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada 

775-688-1921 
 
by picking up the document(s), or by mailing a written request to: 

Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada 
 

5 
 

http://chirobd.nv.gov/


October 28, 2021 
 

Attention:  Julie Strandberg  
4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite M245 

Reno, Nevada 89502 
 
by faxing a request to:  Julie Strandberg at:  Facsimile No.:  775-688-1920 
 
or by e-mailing a request to Julie Strandberg at:  chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov 
 

 
 
Note:  “A request for notice lapses 6 months after it is made”: NRS 241.020.3(b).  Mailing a copy 
of the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board meeting agendas will not be continued unless a request for 
reinstatement on the mailing list is submitted in writing every 6 months.  

 

 
6 

 

mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov


CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 1 Public Interest Comments – No action. 

A. Public Comment will be taken at the beginning and at the end of each 
Board meeting; 

B.  Public Comment may also be taken at other such times as requested so 
long as the request that Public Comment be taken will not interrupt 
ongoing Board business; 

C.   Depending on the number of individuals wishing to address the Board, a 
reasonable  time limit may be set. The Board will not restrict comments 
based upon viewpoint; 

 D.    No action may be taken upon a matter raised during Public Comment 
until the matter itself has been specifically included on an agenda as an 
item upon which action may be taken. 

E. Prior to the commencement and conclusion of a contested case or a quasi-judicial 
proceeding that may affect the due process rights of an individual the Board 
may refuse to consider public comment as per NRS 233B.126.  

 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Non-Action item. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes per person per topic 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The public may speak to the Board about any topic not 
on the agenda but no action may be taken. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 1   



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 2 Approval of Agenda – For possible action. 

 The Board reserves the right to address items in a different order or combine two or 
more items to accomplish business in the most efficient manner. An item may be 
removed from the agenda or discussion may be delayed relating to an item at any 
time. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  2 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Agenda items may be addressed out of order to 
accommodate those present. 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 2   



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE: Agenda Item 3 Approval of the July 15, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes. - For possible 

action. 
 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Approve the minutes of the July 15, 2021 meeting as 

drafted. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  5 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 3 



 Steve Sisolak 
 Governor 

Margaret Colucci, DC 
 President 
 Nicole Canada, DC 
 Vice President 

 James T. Overland Sr., DC 
 Secretary-Treasurer 
 

 

Morgan Rovetti, DC 
Member 

Xavier Martinez, DC 
Member 

Tracy DiFillippo, Esq. 
Consumer Member 

John Bertoldo, Esq. 
Consumer Member 

Julie Strandberg 
Executive Director 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIAN’S BOARD OF NEVADA 
4600 Kietzke Lane, M-245 │ Reno, Nevada 89502-5000 

Phone: (775) 688-1921 │ Fax: (775) 688-1920 
Website: http://chirobd.nv.gov │ Email: chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov 

 
MEETING MINUTES 

 
 A meeting of the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board was held on Thursday, July 15, 2021 by 

zoom conference.  
    
 The following Board members were present at roll call: 
   Margaret Colucci, DC, President 

Nicole Canada, DC, Vice President 
   James T. Overland Sr., DC, Secretary-Treasurer 

Morgan Rovetti, DC, Member 
Xavier Martinez, DC, Member 

   John Bertoldo, Esq., Consumer Member 
 
 Also, present were Board Counsel, Louis Ling, Esq. and Executive Director, Julie 
Strandberg.   
 

President, Dr. Colucci determined a quorum was present and called the meeting to order. 
 

Dr. Martinez led those present in the Pledge of Allegiance.  Dr. Overland stated the Purpose 
of the Board. 
 
Agenda Item 1 Public Interest Comments - No action. 

Dr. David Rovetti was present and stated that Dr. Tinberg delegated the NCA agenda item to 
him.  Dr. Rovetti requested to provide comment under agenda item 16. 

 
Agenda Item 2 Approval of agenda – For possible action. 

Dr. Canada moved to approve the agenda.  Dr. Overland seconded, and the motion passed 
with all in favor.   
 

Agenda Item 3 Approval of the January 14, 2021 Board Meeting Minutes and the May 13, 
2021 Board Meeting Minutes. - For possible action. 

Dr. Overland moved to approve the January 14, 2021 Board meeting minutes and the May 
13, 2021 Board meeting minutes.  Dr. Martinez seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor. 

1 
 

http://chirobd.nv.gov/
mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov


July 15, 2021 
 

Agenda Item 4 Ratification of granting of DC licenses to applicants who passed the 
examination from May to June 2021 – For possible action.  

Dr. Overland moved to approve the ratification of granting of DC licenses to those who 
passed the examination from May to June 2021.  Dr. Canada seconded, and the motion passed 
with all in favor. 
 
Agenda Item 5 Ratification of granting of CA certificates to applicants who passed the 
examination on June 18, 2021 – For possible action.  

Dr. Canada moved to approve the ratification of granting of CA Certificates to those who 
passed the examination on June 18, 2021.  Dr. Overland seconded, and the motion passed with all 
in favor. 
 
Agenda Item 6   Legislative Matters – For possible action. 

Mr. Musgrove was present and addressed the final legislative report provided to the Board. 
Mr. Musgrove addressed the passing of the Board bill, AB 210 as well as the bills that were 
monitored due to potential impact to the Board.  Mr. Musgrove extended thanks to Steve Yeager 
for sponsoring the Boards bill.  
 
Agenda Item 7  – Discussion and possible action regarding contested citations for failure to 
submit 2021 self-inspection by March 31, 2021 - For possible action.  
 Julie Strandberg shared the annual self-inspection process.  Mr. Ling explained that the 
citation addressing the late filing of the self-inspection report is not disciplinary action, so the 
Board shall affirm the citation or not, which would dismiss the citation.   

Dr. Rovetti stated that she made a suggestion at a previous meeting that the self-inspection 
be a part of the renewal.  Dr. Rovetti stated that after hearing from each chiropractic physician, 
she will most likely be dismissing each of the contested citations due to the possibility of the 
reminder email not being received.  Julie Strandberg reminded the Board that there is a regulation 
set for a hearing to align the self-inspection with the biennial renewal.  

 Julie Strandberg was sworn in by Mr. Taruc, DAG. 
A. Andrew Bader, DC  

Dr. Bader was sworn in by Mr. Taruc, DAG.  Dr. Colucci welcomed Dr. Bader and asked 
him to provide his testimony.  Dr. Bader provided concern with respect to the self-
inspection being sent to him by email rather than mail for a fineable offense.  Dr. Colucci 
turned the questioning over to the Board.  Dr. Rovetti stated that an email only notification 
for the first year that the Board is making the self-inspection mandatory did not seem fair, 
however Dr. Rovetti agreed that the licensee should provide the Board with updated 
contact information and be aware that the self-inspection is completed annually.  Dr. 
Colucci agreed that the self-inspection be aligned with the renewal.  Mr. Ling admitted the 
following supporting material: the May 18, 2021 email contesting the citation from Dr. 
Bader, the Boards 21-day notice dated June 15, 2021, citation 21-09 and two pages from 
constant contact identifying the times and dates emails were sent.  Mr. Taruc asked Dr. 
Bader if he had any objection to the admission of the documents, and Dr. Bader stated he 
had no objection.  Dr. Canada made a motion to uphold the citation.  Mr. Bertoldo 
seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor with the exception of Dr. Rovetti who 
opposed.   
 



July 15, 2021 
 

B. LaShawna Henderson, DC   
Dr. Henderson was sworn in by Mr. Taruc, DAG.  Dr. Colucci welcomed Dr. Henderson 
and asked her to provide her testimony.  Dr. Henderson stated that the email went to her 
prior employer, which shouldn’t have happened, because she recalls updating her contact 
information when she renewed her license in December 2020.  Dr. Colucci asked that 
Julie Strandberg look into the timing of Dr. Henderson’s address updates to the Board.  
The Board tabled this item until later in the meeting so the email update could be 
researched.  Mr. Ling admitted the following supporting material: the June 11, 2021 email 
contesting the citation from Dr. Henderson, the Boards 21-day notice dated June 30, 2021, 
citation 21-34 and two pages from constant contact identifying the times and dates emails 
were sent.  Dr. Colucci asked Dr. Henderson if she had any objection to the admission of 
the documents, and Dr. Henderson stated she had no objection. 
 

C. Scott Kramer, DC 
Dr. Kramer did not submit his signed waiver to appear. 
 

D. Lacey Venanzi, DC 
Dr. Venanzi was sworn in by Mr. Taruc, DAG.  Mr. Ling stated that the Board did not 
receive the 21-day waiver from Dr. Venanzi, so her documents were not included in the 
Board packet.  Mr. Taruc stated that Dr. Venanzi can verbally waive her notice 
requirements and Dr. Venanzi affirmed to waived her rights to the open meeting law.  Dr. 
Colucci welcomed Dr. Venanzi and asked her to provide her testimony.  Dr. Venanzi 
stated that she was out of the office at the beginning of February and does not recall 
receiving the emails.  Dr. Canada made a motion to uphold the citation.  Mr. Bertoldo 
seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor with the exception of Dr. Rovetti who 
opposed. 
 

E.  Delmar Walker, DC  
Dr. Walker was sworn in by Mr. Taruc, DAG.  Dr. Colucci welcomed Dr. Walker and 
asked him to provide his testimony.  Dr. Walker stated that he did not receive anything in 
the mail and does not conduct business by email.  Mr. Ling admitted the following 
supporting material: the June 8, 2021 email contesting the citation from Dr. Walker, the 
Boards waiver of the 21-day notice dated July 13, 2021, citation 21-97 and two pages 
from constant contact identifying the times and dates emails were sent.  Dr. Colucci asked 
Dr. Walker if he had any objection to the admission of the documents, and Dr. Walker 
stated that he had no objections.  Dr. Canada made a motion to uphold the citation.  Mr. 
Bertoldo seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor with the exception of Dr. 
Rovetti who opposed. 

 
Agenda Item 22 NCA Report – No action. 
 Dr. David Rovetti was present on behalf of the NCA and reported that the NCA sponsored 
a continuing education seminar in Las Vegas with approximately 12 to 15 attendees and a 36-hour 
online concussion management seminar.  The NCA will be holding an 8-hour continuing 
education course in Reno for chiropractic assistants to provide instruction on specific CA duties 
to include, but is not limited to, ultra-sound, exercise and physical examinations. Dr. Rovetti 
explained that this course is not for CA’s preparing for the exam.  Dr. Rovetti stated that he 



July 15, 2021 
 

continues to work on spinal thrust being outside the scope of practice of a physical therapist.  Dr. 
Rovetti reminded the Board that he would like to make a comment when the Board gets to agenda 
item 16. 
 
Agenda Item 10  Discussion and possible action regarding chiropractic physicians including 
Qualified Medical Examiner (QME) or similar designations on their Nevada letterhead or 
other public advertising– For possible action.  
 Dr. Overland referred to the summary that Mr. Ling provided for the May Board meeting, 
which identified California’s QME process and Nevada’s impairment rater’s process.  Dr. 
Overland shared his findings, similar to the process noted in Mr. Ling’s memo.  Dr. Overland 
stated that California also has an Alternative Medical Examiner (AME), which falls under the 
same rules and regulations as the QME.  Dr. Overland asked if advertising QME or CICE goes 
against the Boards’100-hour course to be certified or an expert?   Dr. Rovetti stated that she is 
certified to conduct impairment ratings and if the course is not 100-hours, a licensee should not be 
allowed to identify CICE or QME.  Mr. Ling clarified that the 100-hours is not identified in any 
of the Boards statutes or regulations, but has been discussed by the Board as being the criteria by 
which a licensee may advertise a diplomate or specialist certification.  Mr. Ling stated that 
advertising is an accurate reflection of an individual’s attainments, so if someone has done the 
work then they should have the right to tell the public. 

Dr. Overland made a motion to allow licensees with a dual license to use QME (California 
only) and Nevada raters may use CICE and/or Independent Designated Rater for advertising 
purposes and Mr. Bertoldo added that licensees be allowed to use other designations pursuant to 
NAC 634.550.  Dr. Martinez seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor.  Dr. Rovetti 
recused herself due to a conflict of interest. 
   
Continuance of Agenda Item 7 
The Board returned to agenda item 7 with Dr. LaShawna Henderson, DC.  Julie Strandberg 
shared the findings of Dr. Henderson’s contact information.  Julie Strandberg stated that Dr. 
Henderson submitted a change of address form on July 25, 2019 to her employer’s address and 
email.  Dr. Henderson stated that she updated her mailing address and email at the time of 
renewal.  Julie Strandberg confirmed that Dr. Henderson did update her mailing address, however 
her email was not updated.  Dr. Canada made a motion to uphold the citation.  Dr. Martinez 
seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor with the exception of Dr. Rovetti, who opposed. 
 
Agenda Item 8 - Discussion and potential action regarding the reinstatement application for 
licensure of Todd Gardner DC - For possible action.  (Note: The Board may go into closed 
session pursuant to NRS 241.030 to consider the character alleged misconduct, or 
professional competence of Dr. Gardner). – For possible action. 

Dr. Colucci asked Dr. Gardner if he would like to go into closed session and Dr. Gardner 
denied.  Dr. Colucci summarized the history of Dr. Gardner’s background and asked Dr. Gardner 
to provide his testimony.  Dr. Gardner explained that he did not intentionally withhold 
information from the Board, however since the incidents were so old, he could not recall the 
dates.  Dr. Colucci opened up for questions from the Board.  Conversation ensued between the 
Board and Dr. Gardner.  The Board members provided Dr. Gardner with several 
recommendations to prepare for his appearance at the Boards next meeting.  

Dr. Colucci made a motion that Dr. Gardner provide a current chemical evaluation, 



July 15, 2021 
 

psychological evaluation, and physical evaluation by a licensed provider, agree to abstain from 
alcohol and all controlled substances and prescription drugs unless lawfully prescribed, drug 
analysis upon request, attending or enrolled in AA or 12-step program at least two times per week 
and provide monthly reports,  take and pass EBAS (substance abuse), and NV Law, be assigned a 
practice monitor and stated that these items be completed prior to reinstatement.  Mr. Ling shared 
that the Practitioner Recovery Network (PRN) is similar to what the Board is discussing, which is 
administered by a certified substance abuse counselor who reports to the Board on a quarterly 
basis.  Dr. Overland seconded for discussion.  The motion failed.  Dr. Martinez made a motion to 
table Dr. Gardner’s reinstatement and that he return to the next Board meeting.  Dr. Canada 
seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor.   

 
Agenda Item 9 PUBLIC HEARING for the adoption of a Regulation to Nevada 
Administrative Code Chapter 634 Known As LCB File No. 179-20 – For possible action. 
 Mr. Ling provided a summary of the revised language to NAC 634 and pointed out that 
the Board packet included the workshop documentation which was addressed at the October 15, 
2020 meeting.   Dr. Colucci made a motion to table this item for public hearing at the next Board 
meeting.  Dr. Overland seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Agenda Item 11 Discussion and possible action regarding participation in an Interstate 
Compact – For possible action. 
 Dr. Overland stated that he spoke to Dr. Schwartzbauer, Executive Director of the FCLB 
who shared that the Interstate Compact was underwritten by the Department of Defense (DOD) to 
allow licensure for military spouses to be more attainable.  Dr. Overland stated that the DOD 
denied the grant to chiropractic, because in their opinion, there were not enough licensees and 
there was discussion about a change to the scope of work, however encouraged the chiropractic 
profession to re-apply when they release their spring 2022 grant.  Dr. Schwartzbauer indicated 
that Interstate Compact will be discussed at the district meeting, October 2021.   

Dr. Overland mentioned the summer school program through FCLB, and encouraged the 
Board to register. 
 
Agenda Item 12 Board Counsel Report – No action 
 Mr. Ling stated that he had nothing to report. 
 
Agenda Item 13 Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary actions.  
Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board determines there is no 
violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing direction to pursue the matter further 
– For possible action:  

A. Complaint 18-13S (Rovetti) 
Dr. Rovetti stated that this complaint did not involve a chiropractic physician, but a 
physical therapist and recommended dismissal.  Dr. Canada made a motion to dismiss 
complaint 18-13S.  Mr. Bertoldo seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor.  Dr. 
Rovetti recused herself as the investigating board member. 

B. Complaint 19-12S (Rovetti) 
Dr. Rovetti stated that she is waiting for the civil case to be complete and currently 
arbitration is scheduled for February 2022. 

C. Complaint 20-01N (Rovetti) 



July 15, 2021 
 

Dr. Rovetti stated that this is a malpractice complaint and has requested the records 
from the DC. 

D. Complaint 20-03N (Rovetti) 
Dr. Rovetti stated that she needs to discuss with Mr. Ling. 

E. Complaint 21-01S (Nolle) 
Julie Strandberg stated that this complaint is still under investigation. 

F. Complaint 21-02S (Colucci) 
Dr. Colucci stated that this complaint is still under investigation. 

G. Complaint 21-03S (Canada) 
Dr. Canada stated that based on the circumstances, this chiropractic physician not be 
allowed to see patients, which was discussed with his attorney, who was in agreement.  
This complaint is still under investigation. 

H. Complaint 21-04S (Martinez) 
Dr. Martinez stated that this was a financial complaint along with a CBD dispensing 
component, however the DC had previously ceased offering CBD.  The parties agreed to 
a settlement, so Dr. Martinez recommended dismissal.  Dr. Colucci made a motion to 
dismiss complaint 21-04S.  Dr. Canada seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor.  
Dr. Martinez recused himself as the investigating board member. 

I. Complaint 21-06S (Colucci) 
Dr. Colucci stated that this complainant requested a refund for unused decompression 
sessions and the chiropractic physician gave a full refund, so Dr. Colucci recommended 
dismissal.  Dr. Canada made a motion to dismiss complaint 21-06S.  Mr. Bertoldo 
seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor.  Dr. Colucci recused herself as the 
investigating board member. 

J. Complaint 21-07N (Colucci) 
Dr. Colucci stated that this complaint is still under investigation. 

K. Complaint 21-08S (Canada) 
Dr. Canada stated that the complainant felt the chiropractic physician acted 
unprofessionally.  Dr. Canada spoke with both parties and felt that the action was 
inadvertent, so Dr. Canada recommended dismissal.  Mr. Bertoldo made a motion to 
dismiss complaint 21-08S. Dr. Martinez seconded, and the motion passed with all in 
favor.  Dr. Canada recused herself as the investigating board member. 

 
Agenda Item 14 FCLB/NBCE Matters – For possible action. 

A. Districts I & IV Meeting – Whitefish, MT – October 7-10 
Dr. Overland expressed interest in attending the district meeting.  Dr. Colucci 
recommended either Ms. Canady or Julie Strandberg attend.  Dr. Martinez made a motion 
to approve their attendance.  Dr. Canada seconded, and the motion passed with all in 
favor. 

B. Other FCLB/NBCE Matters 
Julie Strandberg reminded the Board about the summer school offered by the FCLB. 
 

Agenda Item 15  Discussion and possible action regarding attendance at the FARB 
Regulatory Law Seminar – September 30 through October 3, 2021, Nashville, TN – For 
possible action. 
 Dr. Colucci and Dr. Canada expressed interest in attending the FARB conference.  Mr. 



July 15, 2021 
 

Ling stated that he would not be attending this year.  Dr. Overland made a motion for Dr. 
Colucci and Dr. Canada to attend.  Dr. Martinez seconded, and the motion passed with all in 
favor. 
 
Agenda Item 16 Consideration of potential additions, deletions, and/or amendments to 
NRS 634 and NAC 634– For possible action. 
 Dr. David Rovetti stated that there is an existing statute that he feels has minimal impact 
on public protection, is a lot of hassle and expense on the chiropractic physicians, staff and 
Board members, and referred to the chiropractic assistant program.  Dr. Rovetti recommended 
that the CA program follow the medical assistant program where there is no oversight from the 
Board, only the supervising doctor and asked if the Board would consider allowing one Board 
member to discuss the existing CA program with him.  Mr. Bertoldo stated that he would work 
with Dr. Rovetti and report back to the next Board meeting. 
 
.Agenda Item 17 Committee Reports  

A. Continuing Education Committee (Dr. Martinez) – For possible action. 
Dr. Martinez stated that the quality and content of the continuing education applications has 
improved dramatically.  The pseudo-science classes have not been submitted.  

B. Legislative Committee (Dr. Colucci) – For possible action. 
Dr. Colucci stated that the Board heard Mr. Musgrove’s report and the Boards bill passed. 

C. Preceptorship Committee (Dr. Rovetti) – For possible action. 
Dr. Rovetti stated that she had nothing to report at this time. 

D. Test Committee (Dr. Canada) - For possible action. 
Dr. Canada stated that the test scores are not where they should be, and shared that several 
CA’s are calling for the study material days before the exam, so they clearly are not 
adequately preparing for the exams. 
 

Agenda Item 18 Executive Director Reports: 
A. Status of Pending Complaints – No action. 
B. Status of Current Disciplinary Actions – No action. 
C. Legal/Investigatory Costs – No action. 
Julie Strandberg gave an overview of the executive director reports. 

 
Agenda Item 19 Financial Status Reports: 

A. Current cash position & projections – No action. 
B. Accounts Receivable Summary – No action. 
C. Accounts Payable Summary – No action. 
D. Employee Accrued Compensation – No action. 
E. Income/Expense Actual to Budget Comparison as of May 31, 2021 – No action. 
F. Budget to Actual at May 31, 2021 – No action. 
G. Reserve Policy - For possible action. 
Julie Strandberg gave an overview of the financial reports and the reserve policy.  Dr. Overland 
moved to approve the reserve policy.  Dr. Canada seconded, and the motion passed with all in 
favor. 

 



July 15, 2021 
 

Agenda Item 20 Discussion and possible action regarding contracting for database and other 
services with Thentia.- For possible action. 
 Julie Strandberg provided an overview of the contract with Thentia.  Mr. Bertoldo moved 
to approve the contract.  Dr. Canada seconded, and the motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Agenda Item 21  – Discussion and possible action regarding the Wallet ID/Renewal cards - For 
possible action. 
 Julie Strandberg inquired whether the Board required that the pre-printed renewal cards 
continue to be purchased and mailed to the chiropractic physicians’ and chiropractic assistants.  The 
Board agreed that it was not necessary to continue this process, but allow the certificate to be printed 
from the website. 
 
Agenda Item 23 NCC Report – No action 
 There was no report by the NCC. 
 
Agenda Item 24 Public Interest Comments – No action. 
 There were no public comments. 
 
Agenda Item 25 Adjournment – For possible action. 

Dr. Rovetti moved to adjourn the meeting.  Dr. Overland seconded, and the motion passed 
unanimously. 
 

 
 
 
 
October 16, 2021     _____________________________ 
       James T. Overland, Sr., DC 
       Secretary-Treasurer 
 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 4 Ratification of granting of DC licenses to applicants who passed 

the examinations from July to October 2021 – For possible action 
 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Ratify granting of DC licenses to those who passed their 

examinations from July to October 2021. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  2 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 

  July     August     September   
  Shannon Elizabeth Payne, DC Chad Jacob Basinger, DC  Nina Arnold Bowers, DC 

Katherine Ann Phillips, DC  Mark William Cafagna, DC  Jason James Garrett, DC 
     Sandra Castro, DC   Michael Dale Massey, DC 
     Samantha Flores, DC 
     Carlos A. Mantaras, DC  

Erik Steven Moll, DC 
       Stephen Edward Offenburger, DC 
       Robert Joseph Pound, DC 
       Amanda Rose Sellers, DC 

 
 

 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 4 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 5 Ratification of granting of CA certificates to applicants who 

passed their on-line examinations taken June 18, 2021 – For possible action 
 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Ratify granting of certificates to those who passed their on-
line examinations on September 28, 2021. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  2 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:    

On-Line/In-Person Exam 
CA Exam –   74% passed 
Law Exam – 50% passed 

      
 
Vanessa Acevedo-Martinez Alexis Martin Gallegos Veronica Ashley Penaflor 
Elizabeth Becerra Fay Paniwai Lauvao Jackelin Rivera 
Neylan Kizmet Branch Dawna Rae Lee Chris Edward Robinson, Jr. 
Vincente Alexander Canez- Diane Lizbeth Leon Karla Antonia Rodriguez-
Deluna Bermudez 
Zarryah Annisa Cannon Daisy Lopez Grace Lynn Santos 
Cristina Casillas Karen Lopez Lizbeth Vizcarra-Ayala 
April Dziadus Jennifer Ann Mamola  
Sean Paul Habil Espanola Evelynn Navarro  
Perla Yvette Flores Jessica Jacqueline Olivares  
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 5 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 6  Legislative Matters – For possible action 

A. Strategies 360 - Dan Musgrove 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Dan Musgrove 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:    
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 6 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

TITLE:  Agenda Item 7 – Discussion and possible action seeking approval of settlement 
agreements with the following chiropractic physicians relating to each’s failure to timely submit 
each’s self-inspection forms - For possible action (action may be taken with a single motion). 

A. Milo Allen, DC (21-12N) 
B. Daniel Lai, DC (21-14S) 
C. Shawn Larkin, DC (21-15S) 
D. Clinton Low, DC (21-16N) 
E. Glenn Lunceford, DC (21-17N) 
F. Kathleen Nash, DC (21-18S) 
G. Robert Owens Jr., DC (21-19S) 
H. Shannon Peacock, DC (21-20N) 
I. Joshua Redd, DC (21-21S) 
J. Michael Taylor, DC (21-22S) 
K. Jordan Webber, DC (21-23S) 

POTENTIAL MOTION:  
1. Approve all Settlement Agreement & Orders.
2. Approve ten Settlement Agreement & Orders and deny the DC’s Settlement Agreement &

Order that has not submitted payment.

PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 

MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

TIME REQUIRED:  10 minutes 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   This list of chiropractic physicians did not respond to or 
appeal the citation.  Attached are the Notice of Charges and the signed Settlement Agreement 
and Order for each DC.  All DC’s have signed the Settlement Agreement & Order, however one 
DC has not paid his fine or Board costs. 

REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 

ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 

Agenda Item 7 



































































































































































































CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 8  Discussion and potential action regarding the Application for CA 

Certification of Nicole Ward - For possible action.  (Note: The Board may go into 
closed session pursuant to NRS 241.030 to consider the character alleged misconduct, 
or professional competence of Ms. Ward) 

 
POTENTIAL MOTIONS:   1. Motion to approve. 

2. Motion to deny. 
3. Motion to deny initial application and re-apply. 

 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 25, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   Ms. Ward misrepresented responses on her application for 
CA certificate as it relates to her background.  Please see the attached documentation. 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

Agenda Item 8 
 































CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

TITLE:  Agenda Item 9 Discussion and potential action regarding the application for CA 
Certification from Sandra Milman, including but not limited to, review and potential approval 
of education attained by Ms. Milman - For possible action.  (Note: The Board may go into closed 
session pursuant to NRS 241.030 to consider the character alleged misconduct, or professional 
competence of Ms. Milman). – For possible action. 

POTENTIAL MOTIONS:  1. Approve Ms. Milman’s eligibility to sit for the CA examinations  
based on her transcripts and work experience (outside of Nevada).  

2. Deny Ms. Milman’s eligibility to sit for the CA examinations
based on her transcripts and work experience (outside of
Nevada).

PRESENTED BY:  Nicole Canada, DC 

MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Ms. Milman submitted the attached college transcripts for 
review and approval in lieu of completing on-the-job training in Nevada.  Dr. Canada reviewed the 
transcripts and denied Ms. Milman’s request to be eligible for the CA exam based on the transcripts 
alone.  Please note, Ms. Milman has not provided proof of employment with a Nevada chiropractic 
physician.  Ms. Milman requested to appear before the Board to obtain approval based on her work 
experience (outside of Nevada) and college transcripts.  Please refer to NAC 634.355 (4) (b). 

 NAC 634.355  Certification: Additional requirements; waiver of requirements. (NRS 
634.030, 634.123) 

1. An applicant for a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant must, in addition to fulfilling the
requirements of NAC 634.350, furnish evidence satisfactory to the Board that he or she: 

(a) Is 18 years of age or older; and
(b) Has received a score of at least 75 percent for a closed-book examination or a score of at least 90

percent for an open-book examination administered by the Board on the provisions of NRS and NAC that are 
related to the practice of chiropractic. 

2. In addition to the requirements set forth in subsection 1 and NAC 634.350, an applicant for a certificate
as a chiropractor’s assistant must furnish evidence satisfactory to the Board that he or she: 

(a) Satisfies one of the following:
(1) Is certified as a chiropractor’s assistant by a program for chiropractor’s assistants that is approved

by the Board; or 
(2) Has had 6 months of full-time, or 12 months of part-time, training and employment as a

chiropractor’s assistant trainee from a licensee. 
(b) Has received a score of at least 75 percent for a closed-book examination or a score of at least 90

percent for an open-book examination for certification required pursuant to NAC 634.305. 
3. Evidence of an applicant’s completion of approved training pursuant to subparagraph (2) of paragraph

(a) of subsection 2 must consist of a certification by each licensee who supervised the work and training of the
applicant.

4. The Board may, at its discretion:
(a) Waive one or more of the requirements of this section for good cause shown.

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634Sec030
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634Sec030
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634Sec123
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-634.html#NAC634Sec350
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-634.html#NAC634Sec350
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-634.html#NAC634Sec305


(b) Upon receipt from an applicant of documentation demonstrating that the applicant has received
additional formal training, education or experience, grant the applicant credit toward fulfilling the 
requirements of subparagraph (2) of paragraph (a) of subsection 2. 

REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 

ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 

Agenda Item 9 









CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 10 – Discussion and potential action regarding the reinstatement 
application for licensure of Todd Gardner DC (Note: The Board may go into closed 
session pursuant to NRS 241.030 to consider the character alleged misconduct, or 
professional competence of Dr. Gardner). – For possible action. 
 
 
POTENTIAL MOTIONS:      1.   Motion to approve. 

2.   Motion to deny. 
3.   Motion to approve with conditions. 
4.   Motion to table. 

 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Dr. Gardner’s application was tabled at the July 15, 
2021 Board meeting.  The Board recommended that Dr. Gardner be pro-active and 
provide proof to the Board that he is moving towards bettering himself.  
 
See the attached documentation provided by Dr. Gardner in accordance with the 
Board’s recommendations to support his reinstatement for licensure.  
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 10 















Professional Recovery Network (PRN) 
7465 West Lake Mead Boulevard, Suite 224 

Las Vegas, NV 89128 
 

 
September 16, 2021 
 
 
 
Chiropractic Physicians' Board of Nevada 
Attn: Julie Strandberg 
Executive Director 
4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite M245  
Reno, NV 89502-5000 
 
Re: Assessment on Todd Gardener 
 
Reason for Referral: Mr. Todd Gardener, a 55-year-old single, Caucasian, heterosexual male was 
referred to PRN by Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada for a current assessment to be re-licensed 
in the State of Nevada. 
 
Drug & Alcohol History:  Mr. Gardener has a history of three Driving Under the Influence (DUI) over 
the past twenty year. The first occurred in 1999, the second in 2000, and the last in 2018. Since his last 
DUI in 2018, Mr. Gardener has given up alcohol completely and is proud of his sobriety date of October 
13, 2018. Todd continues to attend four Alcohol Anonymous (AA) meetings each week and works with 
his sponsor regularly who has 25 years of sobriety.  
 
Legal History:  Mr. Gardener states that he has no legal issues outstanding, and all requirements 
associated with the DUI’s have been resolved. 
 
Military History:  Mr. Gardener states he has not served in the military. 
 
Previous Treatments:  Following the Driving Under the Influence offensives in 1999 and 2000, Mr. 
Gardener worked with a therapist for a period of ten years, resolving the psychological issues that led 
to his drinking at the time. Other than this period, no psychological or psychiatric history exist. 
 
Family History:  Mr. Gardener is the youngest of three children, raised by both parents, with no family 
history of drug and alcohol issues. Todd grew up in Las Vegas, Nevada, attending Western High School 
before going to graduate from the University of Nevada Las Vegas (UNLV).  Following his 
undergraduate education, Todd went on to graduate from the Los Angeles College of Chiropractic 
Medicine. Currently, he is the primary caretaker of his mother who has had two strokes in the past 
several years following his father’s passing. 
 



Professional Recovery Network (PRN) 
7465 West Lake Mead Boulevard, Suite 224 

Las Vegas, NV 89128 
 
Medical History:  Mr. Gardener states that he has a history of lower lumbar strain and pain due to his 
current employment as a laborer. Currently he is prescribed Lortab and Flexeril to manage the lower 
back pain. Outside of the lumbar issues, Todd is in good health, both psychologically and 
physiologically. 
 
Testing:  AUDIT and TCU assessment indicated no alcohol abuse or dependency issues; DASS-21 
assessment for general anxiety, stress, and depression indicated very little symptomatology for 
anxiety and depression, with slightly elevated stress levels characterized as mild to moderate. 
 
Psychological Findings:  At the time of the assessment, Mr. Gardener did not display any 
characteristics that would suggest denial of his past problematic alcohol use. Todd was administered 
the DASS 21 assessment during our meeting and no indications of anxiety or depression were noted. 
Todd did have moderate levels of stress, most likely associated with the assessment itself and the 
caregiver responsibilities he has. The DASS 21 is a self-report questionnaire designed to measure the 
severity of a range of symptoms common to depression, anxiety, and stress. His auditory, visual, 
immediate, and delayed memory all seemed normal with no impairments. 
 
Mental Status:  Mr. Gardener appeared his stated age and exhibited normal grooming and hygiene. 
His attitude was calm and cooperative, although he was tired from his long workday. His speech was 
of normal rate, tone, and volume, without pressure. His affect was congruent within a normal range. 
His mood was relaxed and business like. Todd’s thought process was goal directed and logical. No 
suicidal or homicidal ideation was noted. No hallucinations or delusions were observed during the 
interview. He was oriented times three, and both short-term and long-term memory were intact. Mr. 
Gardener maintained excellent insight and judgment in the interview. 
 
Summary:  Mr. Gardener was professional, relaxed, and honest during the interview. He was open 
about the DUI incidents over the past 20 years. The first two were simply the failure to recognize that 
buzzed driving is drunk driving, and the lack of humility he possessed as a successful chiropractic 
physician. The latest DUI in 2018 was associated with the failing health of his mother who had been 
given only a short time to live. Giving up drinking all together and getting serious about working a solid 
recovery program has given him a renewed outlook on his life. I believe that Todd Gardener is in a 
good place to resume his career as a chiropractic physician. 
 
Recommendations:  Mr. Gardener will benefit from the PRN aftercare/monitoring program. It is 
important that Todd develop a strong support system in the Las Vegas area with other professionals 
with similar backgrounds. Weekly aftercare meetings and monthly random drug/alcohol screens are 
warranted. Todd will also have the availability to process work and life stressors with a readily 
available psychologist so that future issues do not become future problems. Todd will need to 
continue working a solid recovery program as he is now. 
 
 



Professional Recovery Network (PRN) 
7465 West Lake Mead Boulevard, Suite 224 

Las Vegas, NV 89128 
 
 
Please feel free to contact me at (702) 335-9943 or prnmark@pm.me if you have any further questions. 
 
Best Regards, 
 
Mark Chase 
 
Mark Chase, MA, MBA 
Doctoral Candidate-Neuropsychology 
LCADC (NV 02479-I), CPC (NV CI697), CSAT-I 
Clinical Program Director 
(702) 335-9943 
 
  
 
  

mailto:prnmark@pm.me


















































































































































CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

TITLE:  Agenda Item 11 Discussion and potential action regarding the citation in the 
Matter of Daniel Lai, DC - For possible action.  (Note: The Board may go into closed 
session pursuant to NRS 241.030 to consider the character alleged misconduct, or 
professional competence of Dr. Lai) 

   POTENTIAL MOTIONS: 1. Motion to approve.
2. Motion to deny.

PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 

MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 

TIME REQUIRED:  20 minutes 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   Dr. Lai is before the Board because he contested the 
citation issued to him for failure to file the applications for Chiropractor’s Assistant 
with the Board pursuant to NAC 634.360.  Dr. Lai’s explanation for contesting the 
citation is attached. 

REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 

ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 

Agenda Item 11 













CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 12 Discussion and potential action regarding the application for 
licensure of Robert Anderson, DC - For possible action.  (Note: The Board may go into 
closed session pursuant to NRS 241.030 to consider the character alleged misconduct, or 
professional competence of Dr. Anderson) 
 

 
POTENTIAL MOTIONS:   1.   Motion to approve. 

2.   Motion to deny. 
3.   Motion to deny and re-apply. 
4.   Motion to approve with conditions. 
5.   Motion to table. 

 
 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  20 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   Dr. Anderson misrepresented responses on his 
application for his license as a doctor of chiropractic as it relates to his background.  
Please see the attached documentation. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 12 











:::A TION For LICENSE AS A DOCTOR OF CHIROPRACTIC .. , l'HE ST ATE OF NEV ADA
CHIROPRACl IC P

BOARD 
H

OF 
YSICIANS'

NEVADA CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS' BOARD OF NEV ADA 

4600 KIETZKE LANE, SUITE M-245 

website
0

chirobd.nvgov 
JUL 2 6 2021 

RECEIVED -RE TO ANSWER ALL QUESTIONS COMPLETELY AND TRUTHFULLY WILL RESULT IN OF THIS 

APPLICATION. THE FEES ARE NOT REFUNDABLE. 

PRINT OR TYPE: 

1. FULL NAME ___ ROBE RT _____ A_N_D_R_E_W ____ ANDE RSON 
(FIRST) {MIDDLE) (LAST) __

 AGE 65 SEX:M _F 

2. ALIASES _____________________________________ _

3. HOME ADDRESS ___________________________________ _

CITY -------- STATE NV 
·----

ZIP --------

4. MAILING ADDRESS 10701 CAPE STHORNE WAY

CITY LAS VEGAS STATE 
·----

NV ZIP 89135 WORK EMAIL 

5. SOCIAL SECURITY NO. TELEPHONE NO. (720) 628-2604
·------------

6. DATE OF BIRTH __ ------PLACE OF BIRTH HARTFORD CT

7. ARE YOU A UNITED STATES CITIZEN? YES I ✓ I NO □ IF YOU ANSWERED NO ARE YOU: (PLEASE CHECK ONE OF THE 
FOLLOWING.)
□ A QUALIFIED ALIEN (AS DEFINED IN 8 U.S.C.A. § 1641).
0 A NONIMMIGRANT UNDER THE IMMIGRATION AND NATIONALITY ACT (8 U.S.C.A. § 1.101 et seq). 
□ AN ALIEN WHO IS PAROLED INTO THE UNITED STATES UNDER 8 U.S.C.A. § 1182(d) (5) FOR LESS THAN ONE YEAR.
□ A FOREIGN NATIONAL NOT PHYSICALLY PRESENT IN THE UNITED STATES.
□ OTHER - PLEASE PROVIDE DETAILED EXPLANATION.

8. RESIDENT OF THE STATE OF NEVADA? _N_O __ IF YES, HOW LONG? __________________ _

9. Do You HAVE A NEVADA BUSINESS LICENSE? YES DNol ✓ I IF YES, PROVIDE YOUR LICENSE NUMBER. ______ _

10. HAVE YOU EVER SERVED IN THE MILITARY? YES□ NO [l] DATES OF SERVICE: FROM ______ TO _____ _

BRANCH (ES) OF SERVICE _______________________________ _

11. HAVE YOU EVER SERVED ON ACTIVE DUTY IN THE ARMED FORCES OF THE UNITED STATES AND SEPARATED FROM SUCH
SERVICE UNDER CONDITIONS OTHER THAN DISHONORABLE? D YES I ✓ I NO

12 HAVE YOU EVER BEEN ASSIGNED TO DUTY FOR A MINIMUM OF 6 CONTINUOUS YEARS IN THE NATIONAL GUARD OR A RESERVE 
COMPONENT OF THE ARMED FORCES OF THE UNITED STATES AND SEPARATED FROM SUCH SERVICE UNDER 

CONDITIONS OTHER THAN DISHONORABLE? J_J__ YES lZL NO 

































CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 13  Discussion and possible action regarding whether a single 
employee with the proper training and certification may perform the duties of a medical 
assistant, physical therapy tech, and a chiropractic assistant within the context of a multi-
disciplinary practice. – For possible action. 
 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Jason Jaeger, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  10 minutes 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Dr. Jaeger submitted his request to Dr. Canada for 
discussion on this Board agenda. 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 13 
 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 14 PUBLIC HEARING for the adoption of a Regulation to Nevada 

Administrative Code Chapter 634 Known As LCB File No. 179-20 – For possible 
action. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Approve the regulation changes as drafted. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci,  DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   Please see the attached proposed regulation changes for 
approval. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 14 



 

Morgan Rovetti, DC  Steve Sisolak 
Member  Governor 

Xavier Martinez, DC 
Member Margaret Colucci, DC Tracy DiFillippo, Esq. 

 President Consumer Member 
 Nicole Canada, DC   John Bertoldo, Esq. 
 Vice President Consumer Member 

 James T. Overland Sr., DC 
 Secretary-Treasurer Julie Strandberg 
 Executive Director 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIAN’S BOARD OF NEVADA 
4600 Kietzke Lane, M-245 │ Reno, Nevada 89502-5000 

Phone: (775) 688-1921 │ Fax: (775) 688-1920 
Website: http://chirobd.nv.gov │ Email: chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov 

 
NOTICE OF INTENT TO ACT UPON A PROPOSED REGULATION 

R179-20 
 

Notice of Hearing for the Adoption of a Regulation of the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada 
 

Intent to Adopt Regulation 
 
 NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada will hold a public 
hearing to consider amendments to Nevada Administrative Code (NAC) 634.  The hearing is scheduled to 
begin at 8:30 a.m. on Thursday, October 28, 2021. 

 
Join Zoom Meeting 
https://us06web.zoom.us/j/83697712788?pwd=T0hiUzlsZUtuVmpaQlp0TXUyUnFwZz09 
 
Meeting ID: 836 9771 2788 
Passcode: 640138 
One tap mobile 
+12532158782,,83697712788#,,,,*640138# US (Tacoma) 
+13462487799,,83697712788#,,,,*640138# US (Houston) 
 
Dial by your location 
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma) 
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston) 
        +1 669 900 6833 US (San Jose) 
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC) 
        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago) 
        +1 929 205 6099 US (New York) 
Meeting ID: 836 9771 2788 
Passcode: 640138 
Find your local number: https://us06web.zoom.us/u/kekABrD1It 
 
The purpose of the hearing is to receive comments from all interested persons regarding the adoption of a 
regulation that pertains to Chapter 634 of the Nevada Administrative Code, LCB File No. R179-20. 

 The following information is provided pursuant to the requirements of NRS 233B.0603: 

1. The need for and the purpose of the proposed regulation. 

http://chirobd.nv.gov/
mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov


The purpose of the proposed regulation is to adopt language related to license by endorsement 
pursuant to NRS 622.530, clarify provisions related to educational requirements for chiropractic 
assistants and to revise the requirements governing the submission of a self-inspection form.  In 
all cases, it is the Board’s intent to make the regulations less burdensome and clearer. 

2. Either the terms or substance of the proposed regulation or a description of the subjects and issues 
involved. 

NAC 634 Existing law requires a regulatory body to adopt regulations providing for 
the issuance of a license by endorsement to engage in an occupation or 
profession regulated by that body to a natural person who: (1) holds a 
corresponding valid and unrestricted license to engage in that occupation or 
profession in the District of Columbia or any state or territory of the United 
States; (2) possesses qualifications that are substantially similar to the 
qualifications required for issuance of a license to engage in that occupation 
or profession in this State; and (3) satisfies certain other requirements. (NRS 
622.530) Section 1 of this regulation provides for the issuance of a license 
by endorsement to an applicant for licensure as a chiropractic physician 
who: (1) holds a corresponding valid and unrestricted license to engage in 
the practice of chiropractic in another jurisdiction; (2) possesses 
qualifications that are substantially similar to the qualifications required for 
issuance of a license to engage in the practice of chiropractic in this State; 
(3) has successfully completed the examination administered by the National 
Board of Chiropractic Examiners; (4) has actively engaged in the practice of 
chiropractic for 7 of the 10 immediately preceding years; (5) provides an 
affidavit; (6) completes the application provided by the Chiropractic 
Physicians’ Board of Nevada; and (7) pays the applicable fees. Section 1 
also prescribes certain circumstances under which the Board will not issue 
such a license by endorsement.  

NAC 634 Section 2  of this regulation makes a conforming change to clarify that an 
applicant for a license by engagement by endorsement is not required to pass 
an examination. 

NAC 634 Section 3 of this regulation replaces the provision authorizing an applicant to 
be certified by a Board approved program with a provision authorizing an 
applicant to have successfully completed an educational program offered by 
a high school, community college, state university or private post-secondary 
school that is approved by the Board. 

NAC 634. Section 4 of this regulation revises this requirement to instead require the 
biennial submission of such a form. Section 4 requires the self-inspection 
form to be received by the Board not later than December 31 of each even-
numbered year. 

 
3. If the proposed regulation is a permanent regulation, a statement explaining how to obtain the 

approved or revised text of the proposed regulation prepared by the Legislative Counsel pursuant 
to NRS 233B.063. 

The text of the proposed regulation may be inspected and copied at the office of the 
Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada, 4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite M245, Reno, NV 89502.  Text 
of the proposed regulation may also be inspected online at http://chirobd.nv.gov or 
http://leg.state.nv.us/register/2019Register/R007-19P.pdf. 

http://chirobd.nv.gov/
http://leg.state.nv.us/register/2019Register/R007-19P.pdf


4. A statement of the estimated economic effect of the regulation on the business which it is to regulate 
and on the public.  These must be stated separately and, in each case, must include: 

(a) Both adverse and beneficial effects. 

There are no anticipated adverse or beneficial economic effects on the chiropractic 
profession or public. 

(b) Both immediate and long-term effects. 

There are no anticipated immediate or long-term economic effects on the chiropractic 
profession or public. 

5. A statement identifying the methods used by the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board in determining the 
impact on a small business prepared pursuant to subsection 3 of NRS 233B.0608: 

The CPBN’s intent to consider potential additions, deletions, and amendments to NAC 
Chapter 634 was published on the agenda for the October 15, 2020 meeting.  Representatives of 
the Nevada Chiropractic Association and the Nevada Chiropractic Council were present at this 
meeting, but neither testified or otherwise raised any concerns with the proposed regulation. 

Copies of the October 15, 2020 Notice of Public Workshop to Consider the Proposed 
Regulation Changes and the Proposed Regulation Changes were e-mailed to all licensee’s and 
chiropractor’s assistants, whose email addresses are on file with the CPBN and were mailed to 
Nevada libraries.   

.   

6. The estimated cost to the agency for enforcement of the proposed regulation. 

There will be no significant cost to the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board for enforcement of 
the proposed regulation. 

7. A description of any regulations of other state or local government agencies which the proposed 
regulation overlaps or duplicates and a statement explaining why the duplication or overlapping is 
necessary.  If the regulation overlaps or duplicates a federal regulation, the notice must include the 
name of the regulating federal agency. 

The Chiropractic Physicians’ Board is not aware of any similar regulations of other state 
or government agencies that the proposed regulations overlap or duplicate. 

8. If the regulation is required pursuant to federal law, a citation and description of the federal law. 

This proposed regulation is not required by federal law. 

9. If the regulation includes provisions which are more stringent than a federal regulation that 
regulates the same activity, a summary of such provisions. 

This proposed regulation does not include any provision that is more stringent than a 
federal regulation that regulates the same activity. 

10. The time when, the place where and the manner in which interested persons may present their views 
regarding the proposed regulation. 

Persons wishing to comment upon the proposed action of the Chiropractic Physicians’ 
Board of Nevada may appear and make oral comment at the scheduled public hearing, or may 
address their comments, data, views, or arguments, in written form, to the Chiropractic Physicians’ 
Board of Nevada, Attention:  Julie Strandberg, 4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite M245, Reno, Nevada 
89502-5000, by fax at 775-688-1920, or by email:  chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov.  Written submissions 
must be received by the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board on or before October 18, 2021.  If no 

mailto:chirobd@chirobd.nv.gov


person who is directly affected by the proposed action appears to request to make an oral 
presentation, the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board may proceed immediately to act upon any written 
submission. 

Copies of the notice and the regulations to be adopted or amended will be available at the 
Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada, 4600 Kietzke Lane, Suite M245, Reno, NV 89502.  A 
copy of this notice and the regulation to be adopted or amended has been submitted for posting for 
inspection by members of the public during business hours at the Nevada State Library and 
Archives, 100 Stewart Street, Carson City, NV 89701. Copies of this notice and the proposed 
regulation will be mailed to members of the public upon request. 

 This notice and the text of the proposed regulation has been submitted to the State of 
Nevada Register of Administrative Regulations, which is prepared and published monthly by the 
Legislative Counsel Bureau pursuant to NRS 233B.0653, and on the Internet at 
http://www.leg.state.us.  This information is also available at the Chiropractic Physicians’ Boards’ 
website at http://chirobd.nv.gov. 

Upon adoption of any regulation, the agency, if requested to do so by an interested person 
either before adoption within 30 days thereafter, will issue a concise statement of the principal 
reasons for and against its adoption and incorporate therein its reason for overruling the 
consideration urged against its adoption. 

A copy of this notice of intent to act upon a regulation has been emailed to all licensees 
and chiropractor’s assistants whose email addresses are registered with the Chiropractic Physicians’ 
Board, and mailed to all persons who have requested in writing that they be place upon a mailing 
list, which is maintained by the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board for this purpose. 

  

  Copies may be obtained in person, by mail, or by calling 775-688-1923. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

http://www.leg.state.us/
http://chirobd.nv.gov/


 

--1-- 

LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R179-20 

PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE CHIROPRACTIC 

PHYSICIANS BOARD OF NEVADA 

LCB File No. R179-20 

June 14, 2021 

EXPLANATION – Matter in italics is new; matter in brackets [omitted material] is material to be omitted. 

 

AUTHORITY: §1, NRS 622.530, 634.030 and 634.135; §3, NRS 634.030 and 634.123; §§2 and 

4, NRS 634.030.  

 

A REGULATION relating to chiropractors; prescribing requirements for the issuance of a 

license by endorsement to engage in the practice of chiropractic; revising educational 

requirements for an applicant for a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant; revising 

requirements governing the submission of a self-inspection form; and providing other 

matters properly relating thereto. 

 

Legislative Counsel’s Digest: 

 Existing law requires a regulatory body to adopt regulations providing for the issuance of 

a license by endorsement to engage in an occupation or profession regulated by that body to a 

natural person who: (1) holds a corresponding valid and unrestricted license to engage in that 

occupation or profession in the District of Columbia or any state or territory of the United States; 

(2) possesses qualifications that are substantially similar to the qualifications required for 

issuance of a license to engage in that occupation or profession in this State; and (3) satisfies 

certain other requirements. (NRS 622.530) Section 1 of this regulation provides for the issuance 

of a license by endorsement to an applicant for licensure as a chiropractic physician who: (1) 

holds a corresponding valid and unrestricted license to engage in the practice of chiropractic in 

another jurisdiction; (2) possesses qualifications that are substantially similar to the 

qualifications required for issuance of a license to engage in the practice of chiropractic in this 

State; (3) has successfully completed the examination administered by the National Board of 

Chiropractic Examiners; (4) has actively engaged in the practice of chiropractic for 7 of the 10 

immediately preceding years; (5) provides an affidavit; (6) completes the application provided by 

the Chiropractic Physicians’ Board of Nevada; and (7) pays the applicable fees. Section 1 also 

prescribes certain circumstances under which the Board will not issue such a license by 

endorsement. Section 2 of this regulation makes a conforming change to clarify that an applicant 

for a license by engagement by endorsement is not required to pass an examination.  

 Existing law requires the Board to specify the formal training that a properly qualified 

applicant to perform ancillary services relating to chiropractic must complete before the Board 

awards such an applicant a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant. (NRS 634.123) Existing 

regulations require an applicant for certification as a chiropractor’s assistant to (1) be certified as 



 

--2-- 

LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R179-20 

a chiropractor’s assistant by a program approved by the Board; or (2) have had a certain amount 

of training and employment as a chiropractor’s assistant trainee. (NAC 634.355) Section 3 of 

this regulation replaces the provision authorizing an applicant to be certified by a Board 

approved program with a provision authorizing an applicant to have successfully completed an 

educational program offered by a high school, community college, state university or private 

post-secondary school that is approved by the Board.  

 Existing regulations require each chiropractic physician who is licensed pursuant to 

chapter 634 of NRS to annually submit a self-inspection form containing certain information 

regarding the practice of the licensee. (NAC 634.384) Section 4 of this regulation revises this 

requirement to instead require the biennial submission of such a form. Section 4 requires the 

form to be received by the Board not later than December 31 of each even-numbered year.  

 

 Section 1.  Chapter 634 of NAC is hereby amended by adding thereto a new section to read 

as follows: 

 1.  Except as otherwise provided in subsection 2, the Board will issue a license by 

endorsement pursuant to NRS 622.530 to an applicant for licensure as a chiropractic 

physician who:  

 (a) Holds a corresponding valid and unrestricted license to engage in the practice of 

chiropractic in the District of Columbia or any state or territory of the United States;  

 (b) Possesses qualifications that are substantially similar to the qualifications required for 

issuance of a license to engage in the practice of chiropractic in this State;  

 (c) Has successfully completed parts I, II, III and IV of the examination administered by 

the National Board of Chiropractic Examiners, or its successor organization, or those parts of 

the examination in effect at the time that the applicant obtained his or her initial licensure to 

engage in the practice of chiropractic in the District of Columbia or any state or territory of 

the United States;  

 (d) Has actively engaged in the practice of chiropractic in another state for not less than 7 

of the 10 years immediately preceding the date of submission of the application;  



 

--3-- 

LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R179-20 

 (e) Provides an affidavit stating that the information contained in the application and any 

accompanying material is true and complete;  

 (f) Completes the application for endorsement provided by the Board; and  

 (g) Pays the fees prescribed by NAC 634.200 for an application for a license to practice 

chiropractic and the issuance of such a license.  

 2.  The Board will not issue a license by endorsement to engage in the practice of 

chiropractic in this State if:  

 (a) The Board is prohibited from issuing the license by subsection 2 of NRS 622.530; or  

 (b) The report from the Federal Bureau of Investigation pursuant to paragraph (g) of 

subsection 2 of NRS 622.530 indicates that the applicant has been convicted of a crime 

described in subsection 3 of NRS 634.140 and the Board has not previously taken disciplinary 

action against the licensee based on that conviction.  

 3.  A license by endorsement to engage in the practice of chiropractic issued pursuant to 

this section may be issued at a meeting of the Board or between meetings of the Board by the 

President and Executive Director of the Board. Such an issuance is deemed to be an action of 

the Board.  

 Sec. 2.  NAC 634.290 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 634.290  1.  In addition to the subjects of examination set forth in NRS 634.070, an 

applicant for a license to practice chiropractic in Nevada , other than an applicant for licensure 

by endorsement pursuant to section 2 of this regulation, must pass: 

 (a) An examination on the statutes and regulations of this State which are related to the 

practice of chiropractic, other than those set forth in this chapter and chapter 634 of NRS; and 



 

--4-- 

LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R179-20 

 (b) Any other subject or examination that the Board determines to be necessary. An 

examination required by the Board pursuant to this paragraph may include, without limitation, an 

examination on clinical rationale. 

 2.  To pass a subject or examination required pursuant to NRS 634.070 or this section, an 

applicant for a license to practice chiropractic in Nevada must receive a score of at least 75 

percent for a closed-book examination and a score of at least 90 percent for an open-book 

examination. 

 Sec. 3.  NAC 634.355 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 634.355  1.  An applicant for a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant must, in addition to 

fulfilling the requirements of NAC 634.350, furnish evidence satisfactory to the Board that he or 

she: 

 (a) Is 18 years of age or older; and 

 (b) Has received a score of at least 75 percent for a closed-book examination or a score of at 

least 90 percent for an open-book examination administered by the Board on the provisions of 

NRS and NAC that are related to the practice of chiropractic. 

 2.  In addition to the requirements set forth in subsection 1 and NAC 634.350, an applicant 

for a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant must furnish evidence satisfactory to the Board that 

he or she: 

 (a) Satisfies one of the following: 

  (1) [Is certified as a chiropractor’s assistant by a] Has successfully completed an 

educational program [for chiropractor’s assistants] offered by a high school, community 

college, state university or private post-secondary school that is approved by the Board; or 



 

  (2) Has had 6 months of full-time, or 12 months of part-time, training and employment as 

a chiropractor’s assistant trainee from a licensee. 

 (b) Has received a score of at least 75 percent for a closed-book examination or a score of at 

least 90 percent for an open-book examination for certification required pursuant to NAC 

634.305. 

 3.  Evidence of an applicant’s completion of approved training pursuant to subparagraph (2) 

of paragraph (a) of subsection 2 must consist of a certification by each licensee who supervised 

the work and training of the applicant. 

 4.  The Board may, at its discretion: 

 (a) Waive one or more of the requirements of this section for good cause shown. 

 (b) Upon receipt from an applicant of documentation demonstrating that the applicant has 

received additional formal training, education or experience, grant the applicant credit toward 

fulfilling the requirements of subparagraph (2) of paragraph (a) of subsection 2. 

 Sec. 4.  NAC 634.384 is hereby amended to read as follows: 

 634.384  Each licensee shall [annually] biennially submit a self-inspection form prescribed 

by the Board. The self-inspection form must be received by the Board [between January 1 and 

March 31.] on or before December 31 of each even-numbered year. The Board will reject a 

self-inspection form submitted pursuant to this section if the form is incomplete. 

 

--5-- 

LCB Draft of Proposed Regulation R179-20 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 15 Discussion and possible action regarding Board communication  

with licensees – For possible action. 
 
POTENTIAL MOTION:  Use email for the Boards primary source of communication. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  James Overland Sr.,  DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: Following discussion at the last Board meeting Dr. Overland 
asked that the Board discuss the source of communication with the licensees.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 15 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

TITLE:  Agenda Item 16 Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 
actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  45 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 

A. Complaint 19-12S (Rovetti)  
B. Complaint 20-01N (Rovetti) 
C. Complaint 20-03N (Rovetti) 
D. Complaint 21-01S (Nolle) 
E. Complaint 21-02S (Colucci)  
F. Complaint 21-03S (Canada)  
G. Complaint 21-07N (Colucci)  
H. Complaint 21-09S (Colucci)  
I. Complaint 21-10S (Colucci)  
J. Complaint 21-11N (Martinez)  
K. Complaint 21-12N (Canada)  
L. Complaint 21-14S (Canada)  
M. Complaint 21-15S (Canada)  
N. Complaint 21-16N (Canada)  
O. Complaint 21-17S (Canada)  
P. Complaint 21-18S (Canada)  
Q. Complaint 21-19S (Canada)  
R. Complaint 21-20N (Canada)  
S. Complaint 21-21S (Canada)  
T. Complaint 21-22S (Canada)  
U. Complaint 21-23S (Canada)  
V. Complaint 21-24S (Colucci)  
W. Complaint 21-25N (Colucci)  
X. Complaint 21-26N (Colucci)  
Y. Complaint 21-27S (Martinez)  
Z. Complaint 21-28S (Colucci) 
AA. Complaint 21-29N (Canada)  

 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President  _X____ Secretary  __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 

 
Agenda Item 16 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16A Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
A. Complaint 19-12S  (Dr. Rovetti) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Morgan Rovetti, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged unprofessional conduct. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 16A 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16B Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
B. Complaint 20-01N  (Dr. Rovetti) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Morgan Rovetti, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28,  2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged unprofessional conduct. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 16B 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16C Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   
 
C.  Complaint 20-03S  (Dr. Rovetti) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Morgan Rovetti, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged that the DC will not release his 
wife’s records to him. 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 16C 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16D Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
D.  Complaint 21-01S  (Dr. Nolle) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Julie Strandberg, Executive Director 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION: The complainant alleged that their treatments would be 
billed to Medicare, however the charges were not billed to Medicare, but charged to her 
personal credit card. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16D 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16E Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
E.  Complaint 21-02S  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Refer to Agenda Item 11. 
 
PREPARED BY: Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The discussion regarding the citation issued to Dr. Lai for 
failure to file CA applications with the Board pursuant to NAC 634.360 was held under 
Agenda Item 11. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16E 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16F Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
F.  Complaint 21-03S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  The Investigating Board Member recommends that this case will 
be administratively closed since the citation has been satisfied. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  This complaint was filed by the Executive Director.  The 
DC let his license expire on December 31, 2020.  The DC submitted the reinstatement 
documentation, which includes a background check.  The background resulted in positive 
results, however the DC failed to provide the necessary information on the reinstatement 
application.  A citation was issued to the DC. 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 16F 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16G Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
G.  Complaint 21-07S  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  This complaint was filed by an Idaho D.O. who indicated 
that a patient visited an Idaho hospital after being grossly volume overloaded by a DC and his 
nursing staff.   
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16G 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16H Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
H.  Complaint 21-09S  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  The Investigating Board Member recommends dismissal. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  This complaint was filed by a former employee of the DC 
alleging that the DC was asking them to conduct duties outside of what they were hired to do. 
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16H 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16I Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
I.  Complaint 21-10S  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  The Investigating Board Member recommends dismissal with a 
letter of instruction. 
 
PREPARED BY: Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complaint was filed by an active employee of the DC 
alleging that the DC was asking them to conduct duties outside of what they were hired to do.  In 
addition, the complainant alleged that another employee is performing CA duties and has not 
submitted their CA application.   
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16I 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16J Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
J.  Complaint 21-11N  (Dr. Martinez) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  The Investigating Board Member recommends dismissal. 
 
PREPARED BY: Xavier Martinez, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged that the DC was not requiring 
masks per the Governor’s emergency declaration.  A letter was sent to the DC reminding them 
that patients and staff are required to wear a face covering.   
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 16J 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16K Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
K.  Complaint 21-12S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion made under Agenda Item 7. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Refer to Agenda Item 7A.  Dr. Allen did not respond to or 
appeal the citation, so he was formally charged and has agreed to the Settlement Agreement & 
Order. 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16K 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16L Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
L.  Complaint 21-14S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion made under Agenda Item 7.  
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Refer to Agenda Item 7B.  Dr. Lai did not respond to or 
appeal the citation, so he was formally charged and has agreed to the Settlement Agreement & 
Order. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16L 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16M Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
M.  Complaint 21-15S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion made under Agenda Item 7. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Refer to Agenda Item 7C.  Dr. Larkin did not respond to 
or appeal the citation, so he was formally charged and has agreed to the Settlement Agreement 
& Order. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16M 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16N Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
N.  Complaint 21-16N  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion made under Agenda Item 7. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Refer to Agenda Item 7D.  Dr. Low did not respond to or 
appeal the citation, so he was formally charged and has agreed to the Settlement Agreement & 
Order, however he has not paid the fine and costs. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16N 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16O Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
O.  Complaint 21-17S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion made under Agenda Item 7. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Refer to Agenda Item 7E.  Dr. Lunceford did not respond 
to or appeal the citation, so he was formally charged and has agreed to the Settlement 
Agreement & Order. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16O 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16P Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
P.  Complaint 21-18S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion made under Agenda Item 7. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Refer to Agenda Item 7F.  Dr. Nash did not respond to or 
appeal the citation, so she was formally charged and has agreed to the Settlement Agreement 
& Order. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16P 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16Q Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
Q.  Complaint 21-19S  (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion made under Agenda Item 7. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Refer to Agenda Item 7G.  Dr. Owens did not respond to 
or appeal the citation, so he was formally charged and has agreed to the Settlement Agreement 
& Order. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16Q 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16R Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
R.  Complaint 21-20N (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion made under Agenda Item 7. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Refer to Agenda Item 7H.  Dr. Peacock did not respond to 
or appeal the citation, so he was formally charged and has agreed to the Settlement Agreement 
& Order. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16R 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16S Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
S.  Complaint 21-21S (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion made under Agenda Item 7. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Refer to Agenda Item 7I.  Dr. Redd did not respond to or 
appeal the citation, so he was formally charged and has agreed to the Settlement Agreement & 
Order. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16S 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16T Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
T.  Complaint 21-22S (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion made under Agenda Item 7. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Refer to Agenda Item 7J.  Dr. Taylor did not respond to or 
appeal the citation, so he was formally charged and has agreed to the Settlement Agreement & 
Order. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16T 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16U Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
U.  Complaint 21-23S (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Motion made under Agenda Item 7. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Refer to Agenda Item 7K.  Dr. Webber did not respond to 
or appeal the citation, so he was formally charged and has agreed to the Settlement Agreement 
& Order. 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16U 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16V Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
V.  Complaint 21-24S  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  The Investigating Board Member recommends dismissal. 
 
 
PREPARED BY: Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged that the DC was not requiring 
masks per the Governor’s emergency declaration.  A letter was sent to the DC reminding them 
that patients and staff are required to wear a face covering.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16V 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16W Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
W.  Complaint 21-25N  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  The Investigating Board Member recommends dismissal. 
 
PREPARED BY: Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged that the DC was not requiring 
masks per the Governor’s emergency declaration.  A letter was sent to the DC reminding them 
that patients and staff are required to wear a face covering.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16W 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16X Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
X.  Complaint 21-26N  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged that the DC was not requiring 
masks per the Governor’s emergency declaration.  A letter was sent to the DC reminding them 
that patients and staff are required to wear a face covering.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16X 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16Y Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
Y.  Complaint 21-27S  (Dr. Martinez) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  The Investigating Board Member recommends dismissal. 
 
PREPARED BY: Xavier Martinez, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant alleged that the DC made inappropriate 
comments and that they requested a refund of the financed treatment plan. 
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Agenda Item 16Y 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16Z Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
Z.  Complaint 21-28S  (Dr. Colucci) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Recommend dismissal. 
 
PREPARED BY: Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant stated that they paid for a package of 
treatments, however after a couple treatments decided that they didn’t need the services and 
requested a refund of the unused portion of the package.  The DC initially denied the patients 
request and after the complaint was filed the full amount of the package was refunded to the 
patient. 
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16Z 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 16AA Status report regarding anonymous profiles of possible disciplinary 

actions.  Board action will be limited to either dismissing the matter if the Board 
determines there is no violation, it has no jurisdiction over the subject, or providing 
direction to pursue the matter further – For possible action:   

 
AA.  Complaint 21-29N (Dr. Canada) 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY: Nicole Canada, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The complainant states that they are concerned with the 
behavior of chiropractic physicians in a practice.   
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: ___X____ President ___X____ Secretary ___X____ Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 16AA 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 17  Board Counsel Report – No action. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Non-Action Item. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Louis Ling, Esq. 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  10 minutes 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 17 
 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 18– FCLB/NBCE Matters – For possible action. 

A. District I & IV Meeting Report 
B. Other FCLB/NBCE Matters 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommended motion. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 18 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

TITLE:  Agenda Item 19 Consideration of potential additions, deletions, and/or 
amendments to NRS 634 and NAC 634– For possible action. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 19 



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 20 Committee Reports 

A. Continuing Education Committee (Dr. Martinez) – For possible action. 
B. Legislative Committee (Dr. Colucci) – For possible action. 
C. Preceptorship Committee (Dr. Rovetti) – For possible action. 
D. Test Committee (Dr. Canada) - For possible action. 

1. CA exam schedule 
a. Discuss alternative exam schedule 

i. Exam Scheduling Policy 
b. February (in-person/on-line) 
c. June (on-line only) 
d. August/September (in-person/on-line) 

2. Supplementary Reference for CA’s 
a. Chiropractic Therapy Assistant – A Clinical Resource Guide 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  No recommendation. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  15 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:    
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X_____ President __X_____ Secretary ____X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 20 



20D 
CHIROPRACTIC ASSISTANT EXAM and LAW EXAM SCHEDULE 

 
 
A Chiropractic Assistant is eligible to sit for the exam once they have completed 6-months 
of on-the-job training, working full-time or 12-months of on-the-job training, working part-
time. 
 

1) Upon eligibility, Board staff will notify the applicant that they have completed their 
on-the-job training and are eligible to sit for the CA exam and Law exam.  They 
may take the exam on-line at their convenience, but no later than <in-person exam 
DATE > or they may notify the Board that they are choosing to take the next in-
person exam.  The fee for both exams is $75.00. 

 
If the applicant passes both exams their CA certificate will be issued. 
 

2) If the applicant fails one or both exams on their 1st attempt, they may re-take the 
exam(s) at no cost, online when they are ready, but no later than the <in-person exam 
DATE> or they may notify the Board that they are choosing to take the next in-
person exam. 

 
If the applicant passes both exams their CA certificate will be issued. 
 

3) If the applicant fails one or both exams on their 2nd attempt, they may re-take the 
exam(s), online when they are ready, but no later than the < in-person exam DATE> 
or they may notify the Board that they are choosing to take the next in-person exam 
with the understanding that if they receive a failing score on one or both exam(s) 
they will be required to re-apply within 30 days.  The fee for one or both exams is 
$75.00. 

 
If the applicant passes both exams their CA certificate will be issued. 
 

4) If the applicant fails one or both exams on their 3rd attempt, they may re-take the 
exam(s) at no cost, online when they are ready, but no later than the <in-person exam 
DATE> or they may notify the Board that they are choosing to take the next in-
person exam with the understanding that if they receive a failing score they are no 
longer allowed to perform CA duties until they have passed both exams. 
 

If the applicant passes both exams their CA certificate will be issued. 
 
5) If the applicant fails one or both exams on their 4th attempt, they may re-take the 

exam(s) at no cost, online when they are ready, but no later than the <in-person exam 
DATE> or they may notify the Board that they are choosing to take the next in-
person exam. 
 

If the applicant passes both exams their CA certificate will be issued. 
 
6) Allow the applicant to take the exam(s) until they pass. 

 

October 28, 2021 
 Motion:  
 Second:  



20D 
 Passed: 
 
 
 
 
          NAC 634.305  Examination for certification as chiropractor’s 
assistant; passing score; failure to pass; failure to appear. (NRS 634.030) 
     1.  At least once each year, the Board will administer an examination to 
applicants for a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant. 
     2.  The examination will consist of the following subjects, including, without 
limitation: 
     (a) Radiographic technology, protection, quality control and positioning of 
the patient; 
     (b) Ancillary procedures and applications relating to chiropractic; and 
     (c) The provisions of NRS and NAC that are related to the practice of 
chiropractic. 
     3.  An applicant who receives a score of at least 75 percent for a closed-book 
examination or a score of at least 90 percent for an open-book examination is 
entitled to a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant. 
(1st attempt)     4.  If an applicant fails to receive a score of at least 75 percent for 
a closed-book examination or a score of at least 90 percent for an open-book 
examination the first time he or she takes the examination, the applicant may 
retake the examination within 1 year without payment of an additional fee. 
     5.  If an applicant who receives training and employment as a chiropractor’s 
assistant trainee pursuant to subparagraph (2) of paragraph (a) of subsection 2 
(2nd attempt)of NAC 634.355 fails to receive a score of at least 75 percent for a 
closed-book examination or a score of at least 90 percent for an open-book 
examination after two attempts and wishes to continue working as a 
chiropractor’s assistant trainee, the supervising licensee must, within 30 days 
after the date of the notice from the Board of the results of the examination, 
submit a plan for additional training to the Board. The chair of the test committee 
will: 
     (a) Approve or deny the plan; and 
     (b) Determine whether the chiropractor’s assistant trainee may continue 
working as a chiropractor’s assistant trainee. 
     6.  If, pursuant to paragraph (b) of subsection 5, the chair of the test 
committee determines that a chiropractor’s assistant trainee may continue 
working as a chiropractor’s assistant trainee, the chiropractor’s assistant trainee 
may continue working as a chiropractor’s assistant trainee if he or she: 
     (a) Pursuant to NAC 634.350, submits a new application for a certificate as 
a chiropractor’s assistant and pays the required fee; and 
     (b) Provides the chair of the test committee with proof that the chiropractor’s 
assistant trainee is enrolled in an educational course in a subject described in 
subsection 2. 
(3rd/4th attempt)    7.  If a chiropractor’s assistant trainee who has submitted an 
application pursuant to paragraph (a) of subsection 6 fails to receive a score of at 
least 75 percent for a closed-book examination or a score of at least 90 percent 

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634Sec030
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-634.html#NAC634Sec355
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-634.html#NAC634Sec350


20D 
for an open-book examination after two attempts, the chiropractor’s assistant 
trainee shall not work as a chiropractor’s assistant trainee until the chiropractor’s 
assistant trainee has received a score of at least 75 percent for a closed-book 
examination or a score of at least 90 percent for an open-book examination. 
     8.  An applicant for a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant who fails on 
two occasions to appear for an examination that he or she has been scheduled to 
take: 
     (a) Shall be deemed to have withdrawn his or her application; 
     (b) Forfeits any application fees paid to the Board; and 
     (c) Must, if he or she has been receiving training and employment as a 
chiropractor’s assistant trainee pursuant to subparagraph (2) of paragraph (a) of 
subsection 2 of NAC 634.355, cease working as a chiropractor’s assistant 
trainee. 
 If the applicant applies thereafter for a certificate, the applicant must establish 
eligibility for the certificate in accordance with the provisions of this chapter 
and chapter 634 of NRS. 
     9.  As used in this section, “chair of the test committee” means the member 
of the Board who is assigned by the Board to serve as the chair of the committee 
that is created by the Board to administer an examination to applicants for a 
certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant. 
                       
           

https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NAC/NAC-634.html#NAC634Sec355
https://www.leg.state.nv.us/NRS/NRS-634.html#NRS634


 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 21 Executive Director Reports: 

A. Status of Pending Complaints – No action. 
B. Status of Current Disciplinary Actions – No action. 
C. Legal/Investigatory Costs – No action. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Non-Action Item. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Julie Strandberg, Executive Director 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  5 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:    
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X_____ President __X_____ Secretary ____X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 21 



AGENDA ITEM 21A

STATUS OF PENDING COMPLAINTS – October 28, 2021

Complaint No. Date Received Investigator Nature of Complaint Current Status Costs To Date
19-12S 9/18/2019 Rovetti Alleged unprofessional conduct Under investigation $480.00

20-01N
Staff: Updates Rovetti Alleged unprofessional conduct-practicing below the standards of care/malpractice Under investigation

20-03N 2/26/2020 Rovetti Failure to provide patient records Under Investigation

21-01S 3/22/2021 Nolle Alleged billing issues. Under Investigation

Violation of NAC 634.360-failure to submit a CA application within 15 days 
21-02S 3/26/2021 Colucci of the CA performing CA duties. Citation

21-03S 3/26/2021 Canada DC misrepresented license reinstatement questions. Citation $150.00

21-07N 5/24/2021 Colucci Alleged unprofessional conduct Under Investigation

21-09S 7/26/2021 Colucci Alleged unprofessional conduct Recommend Dismissal

21-10S 7/27/2021 Colucci Alleged unprofessional conduct Recommend Dismissal

21-11N 8/12/2021 Martinez Alleged unprofessional conduct-not requiring that masks be worn Recommend Dismissal

21-12N 8/16/2021 Canada Self-Inspection Citation-Notice Of Charges Accept Settlement Agreement $100.00

21-14S 8/16/2021 Canada Self-Inspection Citation-Notice Of Charges Accept Settlement Agreement $100.00

21-15S 8/16/2021 Canada Self-Inspection Citation-Notice Of Charges Accept Settlement Agreement $100.00



AGENDA ITEM 21A

Complaint No. Date Received Investigator Nature of Complaint Current Status Costs To Date

21-16N 8/16/2021 Canada Self-Inspection Citation-Notice Of Charges Accept Settlement Agreement $100.00

21-17S 8/16/2021 Canada Self-Inspection Citation-Notice Of Charges Accept Settlement Agreement $100.00

21-18S 8/16/2021 Canada Self-Inspection Citation-Notice Of Charges Accept Settlement Agreement $100.00

21-19S 8/16/2021 Canada Self-Inspection Citation-Notice Of Charges Accept Settlement Agreement $100.00

21-20N 8/16/2021 Canada Self-Inspection Citation-Notice Of Charges Accept Settlement Agreement $100.00

21-21S 8/16/2021 Canada Self-Inspection Citation-Notice Of Charges Accept Settlement Agreement $100.00

21-22S 8/16/2021 Canada Self-Inspection Citation-Notice Of Charges Accept Settlement Agreement $100.00

21-23S 8/16/2021 Canada Self-Inspection Citation-Notice Of Charges Accept Settlement Agreement $100.00

21-24S 8/9/2021 Colucci Alleged unprofessional conduct-not requiring that masks be worn Recommend Dismissal

21-25N 8/26/2021 Colucci Alleged unprofessional conduct-not requiring that masks be worn Recommend Dismissal

Alleged unprofessional conduct-not requiring that masks 21-26N
8/26/2021 Colucci be worn Under Investigation

21-27S 9/21/2021 Martinez Alleged unprofessional conduct Recommend Dismissal

21-28S 9/22/2021 Colucci Alleged unprofessional conduct Recommend Dismissal

21-29N 10/14/2021 Canada Alleged unprofessional conduct Under Investigation
DORMANT COMPLAINTS:



AGENDA ITEM 21A

Complaint No. Date Received Investigator Nature of Complaint Current Status Costs To Date
To be held in abeyance; to be addressed 

Unredeemable  “nsf” check written on Doctor's business account if the licensee requests reinstatement in 
11-23S 11/7/2011 the future

To be held in abeyance; to be addressed 
Possible malpractice if the licensee requests reinstatement in 

13-23N 9/30/2013 the future
Will be addressed if this individual 

18-03S 2/20/2018 Alleged unlicensed practice reappears in Nevada.



  AGENDA ITEM 21B 
 
 
STATUS OF CURRENT DISCIPLINARY ACTIONS at October 28, 2021             
 
Disciplinary Action with Probation 
 
1. Casey D. Robinson, DC, License No. B1263 
 Dr. Robinson was granted a license on September 14, 2007 under the condition that he 
comply with all of the terms and conditions of his Agreement on Conditions for Licensure with 
California and monitoring of his practice by Board-appointed Compliance Monitor, Dr. Jeff 
Andrews.  Dr. Robinson’s 5-year probation with California commenced on February 14, 2006.  
He was required to reimburse the California Board’s costs of $3,103.75 and serve 4 hours per 
month of community service for 2-1/2 years of his probation.  It was subsequently determined 
that Dr. Robinson did not comply with the terms and conditions of his agreement with California.  
This was addressed at the June 4, 2011 meeting and a new Agreed Settlement was approved that 
extends his probation for another five years concurrent with and under the same terms and 
conditions as his settlement agreement with California.  Dr. Robinson was placed in tolling 
status effective November 18, 2015 and has a five-year tolling limit.  Dr. Robinson is current 
and in compliance with the terms and conditions of his California probation per the 
California Board.  Dr. Robinson let his license expire on 12/31/20. 
 
2. Daniel Camilleri, DC, License No. B01553 
On October 15, 2020 Dr. Daniel Camilleri entered into a Settlement Agreement and Order for 
failure to make and maintain legally sufficient patient records.  Dr. Camilleri will be on probation 
and monitored by a practice monitor for one year, pay a fine in the amount of $2,500.00 and 
Board costs in the amount of $1,537.00, with 120 days take 12 hours of continuing education 
related to making and keeping medical records, and take and pass the Board's jurisprudence exam.  
Dr. Camilleri has satisfied all requirements of his Board order, including his probation 
period which ended October 15, 2021.  This is the final reporting of Dr. Camilleri. 
 
3. Michael Milman, DC, License No. B01618 

On October 15, 2020 Dr. Michael Milman entered into Findings of Fact, Conclusions of 
Law, and Order with the Board.  Dr. Milman will  be on probation for five years with a practice 
monitor who will assure compliance with the terms and conditions of the Order.  Dr. Milman 
was ordered to pay the Board's attorney fees and costs incurred in the investigation and 
prosecution of this matter totaling $1,380.00.  Dr. Milman must take and pass the Ethics & 
Boundaries Assessment.  Dr. Milman shall maintain malpractice insurance, obtain and maintain 
all applicable business licensure, whether state, county, or city.  Dr, Milman shall not bill any 
insurances, but work on a cash basis only and cannot accept personal injury cases.  Dr. Milman 
has satisfied all requirements of his Board order, however will remain on probation until 
November 9, 2025. 

 
 
 
 
 



        21B 
Disciplinary Actions with No Probation   
  

4. Francis Raines, DC, License No. B0187 
Under the March 12, 2013 Board Order, Dr. Raines shall be monitored by the 

Investigating Board Member, a chiropractic physician, and a mental health monitor for 24 months 
from the date he begins practicing, which occurred on December 8, 2015.  Dr. Raines’ wife is 
serving as the business and financial manager and is currently the only employee.   Dr. Raines 
was ordered to pay a fine in the amount of $20,000.00 and has been making monthly payments 
of $75.00 per month since May 30, 2013 and continues to do so.   The current balance is 
$13,846.00.  Dr. Raines is in compliance with the terms of the Order. 
 

 



21C
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS' BOARD

Legal/Investigatory Costs

Year-To-Date
Costs Incurred July to Date Fiscal Year 2021/2022

Advantage Group                                            - 0.00
Attorney General                                            - 0.00

Sub-Total 0.00 0.00
Staff Attorney                                     120.00 120.00

Total $                                  120.00 $     - $                              120.00

Costs Reimbursed YTD Amount Paid Amount Owed
James Overland Jr., DC $                            11,570.98 $                        35,306.38

Totals $                            11,570.98 $                        35,306.38

Pending Transfer
Other Outstanding Items: Received  to Treasurer

Self-Inspection Citation Fines $                            13,500.00 $                        13,500.00
$                            13,500.00 $                        13,500.00



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 22 Financial Status Reports: 

A. Current cash position & projections – No action. 
B. Accounts Receivable Summary – No action. 
C. Accounts Payable Summary – No action. 
D. Employee Accrued Compensation – No action. 
E. Income/Expense Actual to Budget Comparison – No action. 
F. Budget to Actual – No action. 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Non-Action Item. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Julie Strandberg, Executive Director 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  5 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:    
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X_____ President __X_____ Secretary ____X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 22 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS' BOARD
BANK BALANCE REPORT

As of August 31, 2021
AGENDA ITEM 22A

CHECKING ACCOUNT 51,257.49
SAVINGS ACCOUNT 767,096.17

SAVINGS ACCOUNT - Restricted 0.00
Paypal 1,072.17

Total Cash Balance @ 08/31/2021 $819,425.83

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE SUMMARY AS OF August 31, 2021

AGENDA ITEM 22B
A/R
Fines 20,921.00
Cost Reimbursements 37,406.38
  Total A/R $58,327.38

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE SUMMARY
As of August 31, 2021

AGENDA ITEM 22C

State Treasurer - Fines collected/payable           18,229.00

Total Accounts Payable $        18,229.00

Extraordinary Items AGENDA ITEM 22D

*Employee Accrued Compensation as of 08/31/2021

Vacation Hours Sick-Leave Hours
Julie Standberg                41.11               1,196.28

Brett Canady                15.00                      6.30
 



Chiropractic Physicians' Board of Nevada AGENDA ITEM 22E
Income/Expense Report To Budget - CASH BASIS

For the Period Ending June 30, 2021

Actual July 1, 
2020 thru June 30, Variance

2021 Budget FY 
06/30/21

Revenue
License & Fees             278,858.75              256,850.00            (22,008.75)
Application & Fees               40,420.00                40,060.00                 (360.00)
Interest/Gain Loss on Invest                    120.44                          -                 (120.44)
Exam Fees               14,459.76                10,500.00              (3,959.76)
Reinstatement Fees               14,350.00                  7,500.00              (6,850.00)
Miscellaneous               13,032.50                  8,574.00              (4,458.50)
Reimbursement Income                 7,117.00                  4,100.00              (3,017.00)

TOTAL REVENUE $          368,358.45 $           327,584.00 (40,774.45)

Expenses
Background Checks               10,088.00                  7,594.00              (2,494.00)
Banking Expenses               14,345.18                  4,720.00              (9,625.18)
Dues & Registration                 3,720.08                  8,873.00               5,152.92
Equipment Repair                          -                          -                        -
COMPUTER: Equipment/Software/Websites               17,902.60                16,256.00              (1,646.60)
Insurance                    786.83                     876.00                    89.17
Legal & Professional               75,266.62                82,075.00               6,808.38
Operating Supplies                 1,617.92                  1,900.00                  282.08
Printing & Copying                 3,332.15                  3,000.00                 (332.15)
Postage                 4,162.19                  4,634.00                  471.81
Casual Labor - Clerical                          -                  4,000.00               4,000.00
Personnel                          -

Office Salaries             120,048.09              119,937.00                 (111.09)
Board Salaries                 3,000.00                  6,300.00               3,300.00
Workman's Compensation                    590.00                  2,345.00               1,755.00
Retirement - PERS               21,390.22                29,208.00               7,817.78
Employee Insurance - PEBP               21,600.52                21,982.00                  381.48
Unemployment                    493.11                  1,000.00                  506.89
Medicare & Social Security                 1,751.10                  1,740.00                   (11.10)
Payroll Processing                    502.00                     548.00                    46.00

Rent               15,272.74                16,631.00               1,358.26
Telephone                 1,984.70                  2,320.00                  335.30
Travel                          -                        -

In State                      37.50                  6,000.00               5,962.50
Out State                          -                  8,000.00               8,000.00

TOTAL EXPENSES $          317,891.55 $           349,939.00 $          32,047.45
NET RESULT $            50,466.90 $           (22,355.00)

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 07/01/20             547,312.94
NET OPERATING RESULT             597,779.84

Equipment Purchases 2,000.00



Chiropractic Physicians' Board of Nevada AGENDA ITEM 22E
Income/Expense Report To Budget - CASH BASIS

For the Period Ending August 31, 2021

Actual July 1, 
2021 thru August Variance

31, 2021 Budget FY 
06/30/22

Revenue
License & Fees                 3,225.00              277,360.00            274,135.00
Application & Fees                 7,260.00                47,810.00              40,550.00
Interest/Gain Loss on Invest                      17.94                          -                    (17.94)
Exam Fees                 1,600.00                16,667.00              15,067.00
Reinstatement Fees                    800.00                  2,120.00                1,320.00
Miscellaneous                 2,622.50                10,130.00                7,507.50
Reimbursement Income                 1,000.00                  7,500.00                6,500.00

TOTAL REVENUE $            16,525.44 $           361,587.00 345,061.56

Expenses
Background Checks                 2,205.50                  9,744.00                7,538.50
Banking Expenses                    704.06                  4,747.00                4,042.94
Dues & Registration                 2,868.08                  6,553.00                3,684.92
Equipment Repair                          -                          -                         -
COMPUTER: Equipment/Software/Websites                 2,882.18                23,601.00              20,718.82
Insurance                          -                     876.00                   876.00
Legal & Professional                 8,482.71                66,705.00              58,222.29
Operating Supplies                 1,639.64                  1,953.00                   313.36
Printing & Copying                    237.85                  2,880.00                2,642.15
Postage                      17.80                  3,934.00                3,916.20
Casual Labor - Clerical                          -                  2,000.00                2,000.00
Personnel                          -

Office Salaries               19,026.42              128,585.00            109,558.58
Board Salaries                    900.00                  4,200.00                3,300.00
Board Meeting Expense                      29.98                  1,480.00                1,450.02
Workman's Compensation                    624.60                  1,600.00                   975.40
Retirement - PERS                 4,081.09                37,596.00              33,514.91
Employee Insurance - PEBP                 3,356.39                20,856.00              17,499.61
Unemployment                      36.98                  1,000.00                   963.02
Medicare                    299.63                  1,740.00                1,440.37
Payroll Processing                    508.00                     548.00                     40.00

Rent                 2,403.00                15,216.00              12,813.00
Telephone                    153.58                  1,843.00                1,689.42
Travel                          -                         -

In State                          -                  6,400.00                6,400.00
Out State                 1,244.40                  8,000.00                6,755.60

TOTAL EXPENSES $            51,701.89 $           352,057.00 $         300,355.11
NET RESULT $           (35,176.45) $               9,530.00

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 07/01/21             849,714.15
NET OPERATING RESULT             814,537.70

Equipment Purchases 2,000.00



Chiropractic Physicians' Board of Nevada AGENDA ITEM 22F
Income/Expense Report To Budget - CASH BASIS

For the Period Ending August 31, 2021

Actual July 1, 
2021 thru August Actual July 1, Variance

31, 2021 2020 thru August 
31, 2020

Revenue
License & Fees                3,225.00               2,640.00           (585.00)
Application & Fees                7,260.00               5,740.00        (1,520.00)
Interest/Gain Loss on Invest                     17.94                    28.42              10. 48
Exam Fees                1,600.00               2,450.00            850. 00
Reinstatement Fees                   800.00                  140.00           (660.00)
Miscellaneous                2,622.50               1,419.50        (1,203.00)
Reimbursement Income                1,000.00                  950.00             (50.00)

TOTAL REVENUE $           16,525.44 $          13,367.92 (3,157.52)

Expenses
Background Checks                2,205.50                  442.75        (1,762.75)
Banking Expenses                   704.06                  721.14              17. 08
Dues & Registration                2,868.08                  659.41        (2,208.67)
Equipment Repair                         -                        -                  -
COMPUTER: Equipment/Software/Websites                2,882.18               2,863.80             (18.38)
Insurance                         -                        -                  -
Legal & Professional                8,482.71             10,020.70         1, 537.99
Operating Supplies                1,639.64                  164.12        (1,475.52)
Printing & Copying                   237.85                  489.21            251. 36
Postage                     17.80                    19.59                1. 79
Casual Labor - Clerical                         -                        -                  -
Personnel                         -

Office Salaries              19,026.42             20,259.98         1, 233.56
Board Salaries                   900.00                  450.00           (450.00)
Board Meeting Expense                     29.98                      3.95             (26.03)
Workman's Compensation                   624.60                  679.50              54. 90
Retirement - PERS                4,081.09               6,999.49         2, 918.40
Employee Insurance - PEBP                3,356.39               3,567.58            211. 19
Unemployment                     36.98                    56.83              19. 85
Medicare                   299.63                  293.78               (5.85)
Payroll Processing                   508.00                  462.00             (46.00)

Rent                2,403.00               2,920.80            517. 80
Telephone                   153.58                  363.80            210. 22
Travel                         -                  -

In State                         -                        -                  -
Out State                1,244.40                        -        (1,244.40)

TOTAL EXPENSES $           51,701.89 $          51,438.43 $        (263.46)
NET RESULT $          (35,176.45) $         (38,070.51)

BEGINNING CASH BALANCE 07/01/20            543,483.13
NET OPERATING RESULT            508,306.68



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 23 Discussion and potential action regarding the Board’s 2022 meeting 

schedule - For possible action. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Set Board meeting dates in January, April, July and 
October of 2022. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  5 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:    
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X_____ President __X_____ Secretary ____X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 23 



 
 

CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 
 
 
TITLE: Agenda Item 24 NCA Report – No action. 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION: Non-Action Item. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  TBA 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  10 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 24 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
                

AGENDA ACTION SHEET  
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 25 NCC Report – No action 
 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Non-Action Item. 
 
PRESENTED BY: Adam Ingles, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  10 minutes 
  
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President _X____ Secretary __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Agenda Item 25 
 



 
CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 

 
AGENDA ACTION SHEET 

 
 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 26 Public Interest Comments – No action 

This portion of the meeting is open to the public to speak on any topic and may be 
limited to 3 minutes 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Non-Action item. 
 
PREPARED BY:   Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  3 minutes per person per topic 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X_____ President __X_____ Secretary ____X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Agenda Item 26 



CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS’ BOARD OF NEVADA 
 

AGENDA ACTION SHEET 
 

 
TITLE:  Agenda Item 27Adjournment – For possible action 

 
RECOMMENDED MOTION:  Adjourn the meeting. 
 
PRESENTED BY:  Margaret Colucci, DC 
 
MEETING DATE: October 28, 2021 
 
TIME REQUIRED:  2 minutes 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  The meeting should be formally adjourned when all matters 
on the agenda have been addressed. 
 
 
 
REVIEWED BY: __X___ President  _X____ Secretary  __X___Executive Director 
 
ACTION: _____Approved _____Approved w/Modifications _____Denied _____ Continued 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
Agenda Item 27 


	CPBNR179-20.pdf
	PROPOSED REGULATION OF THE CHIROPRACTIC PHYSICIANS BOARD OF NEVADA
	LCB File No. R179-20
	EXPLANATION – Matter in italics is new; matter in brackets [omitted material] is material to be omitted.
	AUTHORITY: §1, NRS 622.530, 634.030 and 634.135; §3, NRS 634.030 and 634.123; §§2 and 4, NRS 634.030.
	A REGULATION relating to chiropractors; prescribing requirements for the issuance of a license by endorsement to engage in the practice of chiropractic; revising educational requirements for an applicant for a certificate as a chiropractor’s assistant...

	ADPFD7D.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPC850.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADP4BCF.tmp
	CASH AND AP REPORT

	CHIRO FINANCIAL 08-31-2021 REPORTS.pdf
	CASH AND AP REPORT
	Income Stmnt 06-30-21 to Budget
	Income Stmnt 08-31-21 to Budget
	Comp Income Stmnt YTD 08-31-21

	CHIRO FINANCIAL 08-31-2021 REPORTS.pdf
	CASH AND AP REPORT
	Income Stmnt 06-30-21 to Budget
	Income Stmnt 08-31-21 to Budget
	Comp Income Stmnt YTD 08-31-21

	CHIRO FINANCIAL 08-31-2021 REPORTS.pdf
	CASH AND AP REPORT
	Income Stmnt 06-30-21 to Budget
	Income Stmnt 08-31-21 to Budget
	Comp Income Stmnt YTD 08-31-21




